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Corporate Information (Continued)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERHE

INTRODUCTION

In 2019, the global trade economy growth rate was decreasing with
drop in foreign direct investment. Economic growth rate slowed
down in developed and developing nations. The lack of progress
in Sino-US trade discussion and the weakening of monetary and
fiscal policies in many countries, the global demand of goods is still
insufficient. Major economic entities take necessary measures by
putting forward quantitative easing policies and interest rate cut to
avoid the global economic recession.

The worldwide economic growth rate was expected to be dropped
to 3%. In major economic entities including US, Euro zone and
China, the growth rate declined. The unemployment rate in
developed countries was healthy while those in the developing
countries varied. China was stable but India worse. Economic
downturn resulted in high unemployment rate. The consumer price
index (CPI) kept stable with decreasing rate. It dropped near to
the deflation level in the developed nations. Apart from the poor
condition in global economy, the financial markets were performing
excellent in 2019 with boosting in share index and international gold
price. There were upward trends in both risk assets and derivative
assets.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

China has moderate to fast growth rate with GDP at 6.1% which
is apparently higher than the global growth rate. The social
consumable goods retail sales up by 8.0%. Spending is still the
major force. The spending structure was enhancing through digital
spending, travel spending, and telecommunication spending at
higher speed. Domestic market is expanding, stimulating both
import demand and internal industry. Industry upgrade helps
servicing sector. Manufacturing and high-tech industry was growing
faster than normal growth rate of established entities. Advancement
in production industry attracted foreign trade and investment. In
2019, export figures have recorded growth YOY. This improved
domestic employment condition, and city employment target was
met and unemployment rate was lowered.

There were mass opening of shopping malls in China during 2019
amounting to approximately 980 with total commercial area of 86.0
million square meter which is historic high. Traditional stores faced
substantial challenge which forced them to change in order to
survive or innovate to grasp more market share. Through adjusting
operating mode and employing new technique, retailers try to
compete in the new competitive environment. There are three main
types, namely shopping, catering and cosmetic focus. Recently,
there are strengthening of shopping scenario and experience.
This has resulted in addition of parenting and leisure elements.
Apart from overall change to the store, there was reorganization of
traditional stores with new spending experience topped up to the
old one to enhance reputation and customer flow. Technology is
the key element. This has been injected into the shopping mall in
the entertaining businesses. Accordingly, the virtual reality house,
takagism, theme park, electronic sports, outdoor competition
games, and “Home Party” etc. Besides, cross industry grocery
store, online offline integration, each commercial developer has
used different technology strategy to capture the new market.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERWME(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, traditional department stores still faced
unprecedented pressure, with the gradual reduction of closure of
stores by retail giants in the non-core city area. The retail business
has been recovering. The impact upon the operation in the retail
industry posed by the surge of e-business gradually surfaced, not to
mention the effect brought by high rents, high wage and other rising
costs. Due to unfavourable business environment, the Group has
performed fair operating results.

In 2019, retail industry was generally operating under difficulties.
Despite the negative factors, the Group has made changes to
its operation and recorded a stable operating result. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group has recorded revenue
from continuing operations of approximately RMB645.3 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 9.2%. Gross
profit from direct sales except online sales was approximately
RMB78.6 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 6.2%, and consolidated loss attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately RMB52.3 million, representing
a year-on-year drop of approximately 307.7%. Revenue decrease
was principally attributable to the drop in sales of goods and
commissions from concessionaire sales. However, increase in
rental income from subleasing of shopping malls, interest income
from financing services, and rental income from sub-leasing of shop
premises have partly offset the overall decrease of income.

The second shopping mall of the Group has been commenced at
end of the year which is located at Guanlan of Longhua district in
Shenzhen to capture market share. In addition, internal structure
of major stores has been reformed to account for responsibility
management and streamline operation work flow. On the outflow
side, the Group has reformed the staff organizational structure to
alleviate the fund pressure.

On the administration aspect, the Group has implemented various
measures to maintain its operational efficiency and minimize
operating costs in relation to the human resources system.
Recruitments through various channels such as recruitment fair,
head hunting, campus recruitment were held during the year,
which enhanced the quality and technical knowledge of new staff
members for preparing new business in future. With regard to risk
management, the Group has revised the overall risk management
framework by enhancing the internal system, internal control,
education and introduction, and special investigation.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

PROSPECTS

It is anticipated that the slowdown in economic growth rate of
China will exist as the high operating cost will extort the profit
margin which led to more business merger in the retail industry in
2020. The traditional retail store will be highly conglomerated with
online store by sharing customer data, product information and
sales tactics such that to provide a more enjoyable and convenient
shopping experience. Apart from this, multi-industries development
will be a main stream in retail sector. The China retail market will be
highly consolidated into various large operators to make use of its
corporate marketing power and ability, and to increase the market
competitive strength.

The Directors believe that both opportunities and challenges ahead,
and the retail industry will compete and develop in a better market
environment.

In business development aspect, the Group will uphold the principle
of “consolidating resources and developing retail chain business”,
to strengthen the management, reiterate the competitive strength,
upgrade the brand image and expand in a stable manner. The
Group will focus on the development in areas such as Guangdong
and Guangxi by making use of different expansion models including
“acquisition, merging, investment holdings and joint venture”.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all staff for their dedication and contribution to the
Group, and would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders,
business partners, and valuable customers for their utmost support
to the Group.

Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
30 March 2020
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT “

ESNEEEEBAEHE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (3EfE3#), aged 59, is the founder, executive
Director and the chairman of the Group. He is responsible for
the overall management, strategic planning and major decision
making of the Group. Mr. Zhuang is the father of Mr. Zhuang
Xiao Xiong. Mr. Zhuang has over 25 years of experience in the
retail industry. He had served as a honorary deputy chairman
of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce (#YIT4HE€), a
committee member of Guangdong Province Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (RIHEREZEE®), a
member of the China General Chamber of Commerce (1 EI& ¥
%4 2), a deputy chairman of Shenzhen Private Entrepreneur’s
Chamber of Commerce (AYITHEREBEKEE), a deputy chairman
of Shenzhen Franchise Association (R T EEEETERH D),
and a honorary chairman of Shenzhen Baoan General Chamber
of Commerce (RINEZRAREE). Mr. Zhuang graduated from
Guangdong Administrative and Management College (&R 17 £
Ft) majoring in modern management in July 1999, and obtained
the Master of Business Administration of senior management
from the Sun Yat-sen University (F 1L KZ2). He also received the
award of “Paragon of Work” of Guangdong province (&R %& 4 &)
EEFESR) in May 2003 and the award of Outstanding Staff Care
Private Ownership Entrepreneur (2EBEE LEFRLEDER)
in September 2006. He was elected as the Top Ten Person of
the Year in Commerce of Guangdong in 2007 and the Top Ten
Creditable Entrepreneur in the Integrated Retail Industry in China
in the year 2007 and 2009 respectively, and the deputy chairman
of the Hong Kong Volunteers Federation in 2014. Mr. Zhuang has
served the Group for over 25 years.

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong (§£5M &), aged 58, is an executive Director
and the chief financial officer of the Group. He is responsible for
the financial accounting of the Group. Mr. Zhuang obtained an
undergraduate diploma in financial accounting from Guangdong
Radio and Television University (EREEERAKE) in 1990
and pursued advanced studies in management in Sun Yat-Sen
University. Mr. Zhuang joined the Group in August 1995 and has
over 25 years of experience in the retail industry. Mr. Zhuang was
accredited senior membership of the International Profession
Certification Association (BIFERE#HE) and membership of the
China Association for Employment Promotion (Bt #{2#E€) in
2008 and has obtained a master degree in business administration
from the University of Wales in England in 2014. Mr. Zhuang has
served the Group for over 22 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEAESEE(E)

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong (¥ /)M #), aged 37, Mr. Zhuang obtained
from the University of Luton, United Kingdom a bachelor of arts
degree in business administration in 2005 and a master of science
degree in finance and business management in 2006. Mr. Zhuang is
the deputy chairman of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce
(Association of the Industrialists and Businessman) (3% 3Il 71 42 7%
@ (LB )) and a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen (B 17 7 3Il T & 8
). Mr. Zhuang is the son of Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang
Su Lan. He joined the Group as full time member in 2006 and is
responsible for the overall operation management of the Group. Mr.
Zhuang has served the Group for over 14 years.

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung (8 §8%f), CPA (practising), FCMA, aged
62, is a practising accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chin is a fellow
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Chin is an independent non-
executive director of Excalibur Global Financial Holdings Limited
(SEHK: 08350). Mr. Chin has served the Group for over 12 years.

Mr. Sun Ju Yi (RE ), aged 67, graduated from the Finance and
Economic Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978 and underwent
a master research study program at the Finance and Economics
Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978. He is a senior accountant
and a registered accountant in the PRC. He had been a lecturer
of the Finance and Economic Institute of Tianjin and the assistant
to the principal of Shenzhen Zhong Hua Accounting Firm. Mr. Sun
has over 30 years of experience in financial lecturing, accounting,
auditing and corporate financial management. Mr. Sun was an
independent non-executive director of Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd (formerly known as Macau Investment Holdings
Limited) (SEHK: 02362). He is a director of Gemdale Corporation
(& H 5 B)) (600383.SH), a listed PRC Shanghai property developer.
Mr. Sun has served the Group for over 7 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EERSEEEASERE(E)

Mr. Ai Ji (&), aged 66, graduated from Hunan Radio and
Television University (#58 BB E KR AE) with a bachelor’'s degree
in law and obtained the qualification of a practising lawyer in
1988. Mr. Ai is a practising lawyer in the PRC, has worked for
Hunan Chuhua Law Firm (#m 222 EAT) and Guangdong
ShenTianCheng Law Firm (BR &K EZRIEFT), and is a senior
partner of the Yingke Law Firm (R EHZAIEFFT). He is a member of
the standing committee of the fifth session of National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (Shenzhen)
(FREARBAHEEH A TEZEE), a member of various
committees (including member of the sixth and seventh sessions
of standing committee of Guangdong, deputy chairman of legal
system committee, and deputy chairman of the fourth and fifth
sessions of Shenzhen committee) of the China Democratic National
Construction Association (A B R EZBIE). Mr. Ai practised as a
legal counsel and has accumulated over 38 years experience in
various commercial and law firms in the PRC. Mr. Ai has served the
Group for over 12 years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Li Chong (BR¥£), aged 44, is the manager for
the engineering department of the Group, responsible for the
establishment of engineering and facilities management system,
purchase of bulk equipment, and project based renovation program
etc. Mr. Chen obtained the certificate of Housing Architecture
from the Fujian Agriculture And Forestry University and is a PRC
registered civil engineer. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2003. He has
extensive engineering facilities management experience. Mr. Chen
has served the Group for over 17 years.

Mr. Li Dong (Z#), aged 45, is the manager responsible for
security and safety management of the Group. Mr. Li obtained a
certificate of Business Administration from the Open University of
China in 2011. Mr. Li has served as store manager, deputy manager
of the human resources department, the chief operation officer,
the general manager of the Guangxi subsidiary and the deputy
manager of the procurement department. Mr. Li has over 18 years
of experience in the retail industry. Mr. Li has served the Group for
over 16 years.

Mr. Li Fei (), aged 42, Mr. Li is the manager of commercial
management department, responsible for the strategic
development planning, business positioning and invitation, and
operation management etc. Mr. Li obtained the bachelor of public
relation from the Jiangxi Normal University in 1997. He possessed
ample experience and had worked as managers of Seazen Holdings
Co., Ltd, Commercial management and Department stores of
Wanda Group, Guoda Real Estate Development Ltd of Guangzhou,
and Tianrong Trading Ltd of Dongguan. Mr. Li has served the Group
for over 2 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EERSEEEASHERE(E)

Mr. Wen Meng Chen ((B&E), aged 42. Mr. Wen is the deputy
manager of supermarket procurement department, responsible for
the commodity sourcing and resource allocation. Mr. Wen obtained
the bachelor of business administration degree of Xi’an Jiaotong
University. Mr. Wen joined the Group in 1997 and had been working
as store-in-charge of Shajing store, Longhua store, Shiyan store,
and Gongming store etc. He possessed rich experience in retail
commercial complex management. Mr. Wen has served the Group
for over 21 years.

Mr. Wang Wan (£#), aged 37, Mr. Wang is the manager of
business invitation in commercial management sector, responsible
for the shopping mall business invitation and resource allocation.
Mr. Wang obtained the bachelor of law degree from the Zhongyuan
University of Technology. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2016 and
had been working as managers of Better Life Group of Guangxi,
Jimei Wanda Group in Xiamen, Fuging Wanda Group in Xiamen,
Putian Wanda Group in Xiamen, and Shenzhen Haiya Mega Mall
Commecial Ltd. He possessed rich experience in shopping mall
business invitation and commercial management. Mr. Wang has
served the Group for over 2 years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo (i), FCCA, CPA, ACIS, ACS, aged
46, is the finance manager and company secretary of the Group.
Mr. Ho obtained bachelor degree of Business Administration
(Honours) in Accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist University
in 1995 and a master degree in Corporate Governance from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2008. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (“ICSA”). He was
awarded the Chartered Governance Professional qualification of the
ICSA and HKICS. Mr. Ho has experience in accounting, auditing
and corporate finance. Mr. Ho has served the Group for over 12
years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWE TN

(A)

16

INDUSTRY REVIEW

The global economic condition was slowing down with
international investment decline and the use of quantitative
easing (QE) monetary policy by major countries in 2019.
Major developed economic powers, except Japan,
experienced decline in economic growth. The economy
of most of the developing countries went down or facing
economic crisis with the growth rate of Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) of China dropped as well. The GDP in
newly emerging market was generally decreased in 2019
compared with 2018.

The inflation rate in developed nations has been decreasing,
with both the growth rate of inflation and GDP dropped
simultaneously. This made the global demand declined.
The United States has fixed the target personal spending
rate at 1.5%. The inflation in European countries has been
decreasing and kept in low level, and spending index was
comparatively decreased. Japan, with inflation rate at 0.5%
only, is likely to go into deflation. The inflation rate of newly
emerging market was dropping, with specific countries
undergoing severe inflation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

In China, the government has putting forward various fiscal
and monetary measures under the advocacy six stability
targets to cope with economic decline by stimulating
domestic demand to boost employment and economy.
Annual social consumable goods retailing amount was kept
in stable and accelerating manner. There were changes
in the retail industry, entry or exit by foreign investors,
vertical integration into different market, opening or closure
of stores, expanding or contracting in fresh market, use
of digital information exchange, and selection of new or
traditional retail methods etc. Retail entities have reviewed its
organizational structure to tackle for the future challenge.

In 2019, the Guangdong retail sales of social consumer
goods for the year reached RMB4,270 billion, representing
a year-on-year (“YOY”) growth of 8.0%. The province has
successfully implemented consumer spending mechanism
by enhancing city spending and expanding rural spending.
Accordingly, there were numerous measures to stimulate
spending behavior by encouraging motor car purchase,
exploring sightseeing destinations, promoting Pearl River
delta night economic circle, improving city-rural logistic
linkage. In addition, Guangdong has adopted the poverty
alleviation through commercial reform by advancing
electronic commerce factors in local community. To
enrich the city and village households by their residents
themselves is the main task. Major strategic plans included
strengthening cooperation in east-west districts and
enhancing communication network between government
departments.
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In 2019, the online retail sales of commodity and service
for the year reached RMB10,600 billion, composing 25.7%
of the total retail sales of social consumer goods. The
market was growing its importance due to its convenience
but produced various problems. Funding shortage caused
suspension or removal of items from categories. Over supply
of fresh goods providers caused quality, after-sale service
and supply chain problems. High gross profit of perishable
goods was attractive but high waste loss pushed the profit
down. Social exchange has passed through its peak as the
method of using bonus to attract new users has been non-
profit making. Sellers of fashion, cosmetic and luxury goods
were hard to survive as the market was occupied by industry
giants. Cross-border e-commercers were affected by the
Sino-US trade tension. Food and toy sellers was blocked
by lack of entry barrier to cause quality and management
problems. Second hand commodity sellers were affected
by the inconsistent product description, poor delivery
arrangement, and unsecured after-sale protection.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

20194 - 2B LM ERBEERE
ARK10.68ET - HHEHEERT
ERBENLLER25.7% - HBLEZEER
HERFEMEEETISRGEE - B
FNEBLENELERZEE - £#
EEETYFEHBESHE  £XE
EEAERE s TREIER - AHES
PMHRERAREREEREBEE -
EDEI'JDD FRERR  SRERBE

n SRR - N EHEE T B AR
H%EELF@@J—F o Bff A A B P Gn Y E A
RS EHEREXEAK  BiEE
HER - BEIR - UK BEN
TIHERE  FEESRERNER
K FERE R EFEEHRRE
APEREE - SRARERABEEE
WEENITE - MEZLEAPLPAR - B
KERAREKBRSIFFAE - TE5
AFBEREANTR - ﬁﬁkﬁf%?ﬁ’f’
Ko RETEMSBREAAFE
RN TEAaNERE Fﬁ?lﬁﬂ&@‘
FE - BB EEYAEL - GEME -
%T%%iﬁmiﬁééﬁﬁxﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬁ
TEAET XTEXEHEETE -
b b/ N ) PSSR T R R AS R AR o
RmER  AER - BFAREE
=EAPTE - I8 BT E B IE AR &
EIE - MRS EEPHm® ETET ifn 8
JEeo ZFEARRHBIEF - DRIA
R 5L T ERNTEE 5?%'4:‘
HBETREE  ERZETFEERRE
T 1) 2K 288 o



ManagementDmcusmonandAnaWsm(Conﬁnuem
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Shopping malls appeared upon the enhancement of
shopping standard. They offered different ways of
consumption including scenario producing, experiencing
and social spending. There were new products or payment
methods and targeted on the youth spending. According to
statistics, there were about 520 new shopping malls with
total operational size of 44,000,000 meter square. The trend
was stable with slight decrease of 2% YOQOY. By region, the
East China composed of approximately 48% of new stores
which led the seven major districts. The South-west region
ranked afterward with the contribution of two established
cities — namely Chengdu and Chongging. Overall, the first
tier cities has been saturated and characterized by product
similarity while the remote areas has limited spending
power, the new first tier cities has been activated by
the high growing speed, fast growing population, better
traffic network and well business environment. One stop
commercial complex encompassed basic shopping and
dining places, added with experiencing amenities including
theatre, entertainment hub, cinema, and pet parks etc.
Shopping mall with size below 50,000 square meters was
increasing. This was due to closer to local community and
lower distribution costs for these shopping malls in the major
cities.
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According to the statistics released by the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, GDP for the year amounted to
RMB99,100 billion, representing an 6.1% increase over last
year. Total retail sales of social consumer goods for the
year was RMB41,200 billion, representing a YOY growth
of 8.0%. Among them, retail sales of “over-the-threshold”
consumer goods grew by 3.9% on an YOY basis to
RMB14,800 billion. Retail sales of urban consumer goods
rose by 7.9% to RMB35,100 billion YOY, while retail sales
of rural consumer goods rose by 9.0% to RMB6,000 billion
YQOY. By consumption pattern, retail sales of commodities
went up 7.9% to RMB36,500 billion YOY. During the year,
total domestic online retail sales amounted to RMB10,600
billion, representing an YOY growth of 16.5%. Among them,
commodity goods online retail sales grew by 19.5% on an
YQOY basis to RMB8,500 billion, accounting for 20.7% of
the total retail sales of social consumer goods. The growth
in the beverage, apparel and daily consumption categories
were 30.9%, 15.4% and 19.8% respectively. The annual
per capita income amounted to RMB31,000. On further
breakdown, per capita disposable income of urban residents
amounted to RMB42,000, increased by 7.9% as compared
with last year; Per capita disposable income of rural
residents amounted to RMB16,000, increased by 9.6% as
compared with last year.

In 2019, GDP of Guangdong for the year amounted to
RMB10,800 billion, representing an 6.2% increase over last
year. Total wholesale and retail sales growth was 4.9%,
while accommodation and beverage growth was 3.3%.
Among them, retail sales of “over-the-threshold” servicing
corporation achieved RMBS,100 billion, grew by 11.8%
YOY.

Overall, online sales grew significantly attributable to
expansion of internet users and logistic channel. With the
new techniques derived from Big Data, artificial intelligence
and mobile internet, supermarkets and professional stores
explored new sales channel. This resulted in the fast growing
of some traditional retail, and integration of newly emerge
and traditional industry.
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(B)

BUSINESS REVIEW

At year end date, the Group has directly operated 11 retail
stores and 2 shopping malls with a total gross floor area of
approximately 214,000 square meters, principally located
in Guangdong province (including Shenzhen and Foshan)
and Guangxi Autonomy Zone. Among them, ten retail stores
(total gross floor area of approximately 146,000 square
meters) are operating as retail outlets and one (total gross
floor area of approximately 2,000 square meters) is used for
sub-leasing purpose. For the ten retail outlets, eight of them
are in Guangdong (seven in Shenzhen and one in Foshan)
and the remaining two are in Guangxi Nanning.

During the year, the Group has operated two shopping
malls — Bantian and Guanlan stores located at Longgang
and Longhua districts of Shenzhen respectively, with total
approximately 66,000 square meters, in the busiest zones of
the districts. Bantian shopping mall commenced business at
end of year 2017 with approximately 35,000 square meters.
Guanlan shopping mall commenced business at end of year
2019 with approximately 31,000 square meters. It is located
in the city center district of the Guanlan Street which is the
intersection point of the proposed Shenzhen metro station
and tram station (Xinlan station) with high people flow.

Besides, the Group also owns a four-floors commercial
property located in Baoan Central District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong. Except for part of one floor being used as the
Group’s own headquarters, all other commercial floors have
been fully leased out for rental purpose.

Recapping on the year 2019, the Group has the following
operation highlights.
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During the year, the Group has repositioned the
Supermarket section to accommodate the location factor
and business circle. Accordingly, different models have
been put forward including elite supermarket, experience
stores, discount flagship stores and intelligent stores etc.
Apart from this, there were new adjustment strategies
in the operation through internal structure and system
reform. For the staffing, the main focus is on recruiting,
training and appraisal. This hopes to build up positive
working atmosphere. For the commodity, the main focus
is on shelving, location, replacement of obsolete goods,
introducing potential products and scenario creating. This
hopes to bring up customer flow. For the sales floor, the
main focus is on warehousing, display and presenting,
decorating and improving shopping environment.

During the year, the Group has obtained various awards
from the public sector. In May 2019, the operating subsidiary
of the Group — Shenzhen Baijiahua Network Technology
Limited (“Baijiahua Technology”) attained the Corporate
Intellectual Property Management Standard certified
by the Country and obtained the relevant management
certificate. This aimed to build scientific and standardized
intellectual property management system to maintain
corporate sustainable development. Besides, the major
operating subsidiary of the Group — Shenzhen Baijiahua
Department Stores Co. Ltd (“BJH Department Stores”)
was named “Top 50 Shenzhen Chain Store in 2018” by the
Shenzhen Chain Operation Association for recognition of
its leading position in the retail industry of the Shenzhen
region. In June 2019, BJH Department Stores received
title from Guangdong Chain Operations Association as
“Top 50 Honorary Guangdong Chain Stores in 2018”.
In December 2019, BJH Department Stores received
honour from Shenzhen Corporate Union and Shenzhen
Entrepreneur Association as “2019 Top 500 Enterprises in
Shenzhen”. In addition, it also received the titles of “2019
Top 100 Private-Owned Enterprises in Shenzhen” and “2019
Top 100 Quality Products Enterprises in Shenzhen (third
session)” for recognition of its good reputation and corporate
responsibility in the province and city. The Group will work
hard to provide best quality retail service to the community to
acknowledge recognition from the public.
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The second shopping mall is located at the Longhua
Guanlan new district, Shenzhen, which has commenced
business on the fourth quarter of the year. It is located at
the old district centre of Guanlan, above the intersection
point of the Shenzhen Metro line (construction in progress)
and the Shenzhen Tram, which has a definite competitive
advantage in future. The shopping mall has been interiorised
by renowned design house in China focusing on creating
a scence-oriented, experiential and trendy shopping
environment. The theme of the mall is to provide a platform
for the residents and visitors nearby for family gathering,
social networking and leisure. Among the brand name
selection, famous online best sellers were invited to station
in our shopping mall with strategic planning on sales floor
mix. The portion of sales floor for entertaining, catering, and
product selling will be strictly controlled and adhered to the
overall planning of the mall. The mall has attracted many
potential customers in the surrounding area which are mainly
the luxury residential district with consumption community
composed of high income earners, young and life enjoying
generation. This will have a positive impact to the result of
the Group.

The risk management department has put forward various
measures on the practical issues faced by the subsidiary
of the Group to enhance the management and monitoring
program. Three divisions perform different functions. The
internal audit division enacted and established operational
audit framework by defining job boundary and limit, and
by updating office manual for workflow control. Besides,
internal scrutineering and supervision of the tendering and
goods acceptance process have been extended to avoid
loss. On the other hand, internal audit division reformed the
anti-corruption system and mechanism, addressed integrity
undertaking on the job and established audit procedure
system and scope on project base to protect Group assets.
The legal division reviewed the staff reward and punishment
system, rule of contract management, and control approval
procedure as a mean to avoid possible non-legal risk.
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OUTLOOK

During the year, the Group has formulated a series
of measure to enhance sales turnover and to avoid
unnecessary costs, so as to achieve management target.
Moreover, the Group aimed to consolidate the existing
stores by reform and innovation. By this, improvement
in sales mix, upgrade brand name, enhance shopping
experience to provide new shopping experience to
customers.

In addition, the Group has explored new commercial retail
mode, including shopping mall, trial experience, internet
plus, and tasteful consumption. With the online resource and
shopping outlets, and the synergy of online offline capacity,
the Group is able to provide a one-stop shopping experience
to customers.

The year 2020 has both opportunity and challenge existed,
the Group has prepared to cope with all difficulties, to make
use of our core competency in the industry.

Looking ahead, China is still under the fast pace of
development stage. The macro-economic condition
has significant impact to the industry. Rapid growth in
information technology has direct and critical effect to the
industry. The directors are confident towards the future.
The mission of the Group is to become one of the major
operators in the retail industry.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations (that is, the
aggregate proceeds from sales of goods, commissions from
concessionaire sales, rental income from sub-leasing of shop
premises, rental income from investment properties, rental income
from sub-leasing of shopping malls, and interest income from
financing services) amounted to RMB645.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, representing a decrease of 9.2% as
compared to RMB710.3 million in the corresponding period of
2018. The decrease was principally attributable to the decrease
in sales of goods and commissions from concessionaire sales.
Nevertheless, rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises and
rental income from sub-leasing of shopping malls have increased
which partly offset the overall decrease of income.

Sales of goods decreased by 12.4% to RMB432.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 from RMB494.2 million in
the corresponding period of 2018, principally due to the external
competitive market environment and effect on store enhancement
and change in sales floor usage in three main stores. There were
substantial changes in sales floor usage in Longhua, Songgang
and Gongming stores from supermarket to concessionaires, food
and beverage and other supplemental service which affect the
amount of sales of goods. Sales of goods as a percentage of the
Group’s total revenue from continuing operations was 67.0% for
the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to 69.6% in the
corresponding period of 2018.

Commission from concessionaire sales decreased by 22.8% to
RMB78.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
RMB101.8 million in the corresponding period of 2018, mainly
due to temporary suspense of business from enhancement works.
Commission from concessionaire sales as a percentage of the
Group’s total revenue from continuing operations was 12.2% for
the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to 14.3% for the
corresponding period of 2018.

Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises going up by
10.6% to RMB64.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
from RMB58.4 million for the corresponding period in 2018,
mainly due to increase in unit rental income after completion of
enhancement works. Rental income from sub-leasing of shop
premises as a percentage of the Group’s total revenue from
continuing operations was 10.0% for the year ended 31 December
2019 as compared to 8.2% for the corresponding period of 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

Rental income from investment properties decreased slightly by
5.5% to RMB9.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
from RMB10.1 million for the corresponding period in 2018, mainly
due to early termination of some existing tenancies. Rental income
from investment properties as a percentage of the Group’s total
revenue from continuing operations was 1.5% for the year ended 31
December 2019 as compared to 1.4% for the corresponding period
of 2018.

Rental income from sub-leasing of shopping malls increased
moderately by 33.2% to RMB52.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 from RMB39.7 million for the corresponding
period in 2018 due to the full operation of Bantian shopping mall
and commencement of business of Guanlan shopping mall. Rental
income from subleasing of shopping malls as a percentage of the
Group’s total revenue from continuing operations was 8.2% for
the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to 5.6% for the
corresponding period of 2018.

Interest income from financing services increased by 13.1%
to RMB6.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
RMB6.1 million for the corresponding period in 2018, mainly due
to continued business with a customer which is a major supplier of
a telecommunication giant. Interest income from financing services
as a percentage of the Group’s total revenue from continuing
operations was 1.1% for the year ended 31 December 2019 as
compared to 0.9% for the corresponding period of 2018.

Other operating income from continuing operations, which
mainly comprised of interest income, net exchange gain,
administration and management fee income, government grants
and miscellaneous income, dropped by 8.1% to RMB65.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 from RMB71.5 million in
the corresponding period in 2018, mainly due to decrease in local
government subsidies.

Purchase of and changes in inventories from continuing operations
amounted to RMB354.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing a decrease of 13.7% as compared with
RMB410.4 million in the corresponding period of 2018, due to
decline in sales of goods and tight cost control measure. As
a percentage of sales of goods, purchase of and changes in
inventories was 81.8% for the year ended 31 December 2019 as
compared with 83.0% in the same period of 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

Increase in fair value of investment properties increased from
approximately RMBO0.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, to approximately RMBO0.8 million for this year, representing an
increase of approximately 60.0% due to changing conditions in real
estate market.

Staff costs from continuing operations increased by 10.8% to
RMB107.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
RMB96.6 million in the corresponding period of 2018, primarily
due to commencement of business in Guanlan shopping mall and
modification of staff structure in headquarters.

Depreciation from continuing operations increased by 11.2%
to RMB45.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
RMB41.1 million in the corresponding period in 2018. The increase
was mainly due to addition of plant and equipment of Guanlan
shopping mall and enhancement works.

Depreciation on right-of-use assets from continuing operations was
approximately RMB95.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 due to adoption of HKFRS 16 — Leases, with effect from
1 January 2019 for most of the store, office and staff quarters
tenancies.

Operating lease rental expenses from continuing operations
decreased by 100% to RMB Nil for the year ended 31 December
2019 from RMB108.6 million in the corresponding period of 2018.
The decrease was mainly due to adoption of HKFRS 16 — Leases,
with effect from 1 January 2019 for most of the store, office and
staff quarters tenancies.

Interest on lease liabilities from continuing operations was
approximately RMB51.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 due to adoption of HKFRS 16 — Leases, with effect from
1 January 2019 for most of the store, office and staff quarters
tenancies.

Other operating expenses from continuing operations, increased
by RMB2.0 million from RMB3.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB5.5 million in the corresponding period of
2019. This was primarily due to compensation to tenants for early
termination of tenancies and written off of plant and equipment
upon enhancement works.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

As a result of the reasons mentioned above, the Group’s loss
before income tax from continuing operations was approximately
by RMB49.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 as
compared with the profit before income tax from continuing
operations of the Group of RMB33.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Income tax expense amounted to RMB2.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, representing a decrease of 71.7% from
RMB9.1 million in the corresponding period of 2018, mainly due
to loss incurred on major operating business during the year. The
tax rate applicable to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 were 25% for general PRC subsidiaries (15% for Guangxi
subsidiary). In addition, pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income
Tax Law, the Group is liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by subsidiaries established in China. The applicable tax
rate is 10%.

As a result of the aforementioned, loss attributable to Shareholders
amounted to RMB52.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing a drop of 307.7% as compared with the profit of
RMB25.2 million in the corresponding period of 2018.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Except for the matter as disclosed under note 38 to the financial
statements, the Group did not have any other significant
subsequent events after 31 December 2019.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
RMB117.7 million (2018: approximately RMB270.9 million). During
the year, the Group did not use any financial instruments for any
hedging purpose.

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AND NET
ASSETS

The Group’s net current liabilities as at 31 December 2019 was
approximately RMB72.9 million, a decrease of 161.1% from the
balance of net current assets of approximately RMB119.3 million
recorded as at 31 December 2018.

Net assets down to approximately RMB533.9 million, representing

a decrease of approximately RMB71.8 million or 11.9% over the
balance as at 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVENUE - TURNOVER

gow 1%

1.5% ‘
10.0% \

12.2%

14.2%

67.0%

2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\EF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Continuing Operations: B E TS

O Sales of goods HEEM 432,804 494,219

© Commissions from concessionaire sales _rgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ SHE 78,540 101,761

® Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises D E4 W ETE S U A 64,629 58,428

O Rental income from investment properties FEYENASIWA 9,528 10,081

© Rental income from sub-leasing of shopping malls SRS M ETE S A 52,940 39,738

® Interest income from financing services R E 2 @R < F B WA 6,888 6,109
645,329 710,336

Discontinued Operations: BRI

© Sales of food and catering HERMRER - 7,902
645,329 718,238
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEENWE D ()

GROSS PROCEEDS

FRi§ R4

0.4% 2.5%
0.

2019 2018
—E-hF ZZE-)N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARBTT

O Sales of goods HEEM 432,804 494,219
© Concessionaire sales HEHE 699,297 970,532
© Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises 2 /54X aHE S KA 64,629 58,428
O Rental income from investment properties REMFEHHESWA 9,528 10,081
© Rental income from sub-leasing of shopping malls 2B EHES KA 52,940 39,738
® Interest income from financing services RE SRR 2B U A 6,888 6,109
© Sales of food and catering HERY MBEFWA - 7,902

1,266,086 1,587,009

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION

Risk Management

The activities of the Group expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including foreign exchange risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk.

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group has operation in the PRC so that the majority
of the Group’s revenues, expenses and cash flows are
denominated in RMB. Assets and liabilities of the Group
are mostly denominated in RMB and HK$. Any significant
exchange rate fluctuations of foreign currencies against RMB
may have financial impact to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk

For the operation and management of retail stores and
other related businesses, the Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk. Most of the sales transactions
were settled in cash basis or by credit card payment (or
through online payment platforms). Credit risk on cash and
bank balances is mitigated as cash is deposited in banks of
high credit rating.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from
loan receivables from factoring and supply chain financing
businesses. In respect of loan receivables, the Group’s
policy is that all customers who wish to obtain loans from the
Group are subject to management review. The Group holds
collaterals directly or indirectly to cover its risks associated
with loan receivables.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises on
cash and bank balances and loan receivables. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. The Group has not formulated a policy to
manage the interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and bank
balances and have available funding to meet its working
capital requirements. The Group’s liquidity is dependent
upon the cash received from its customers. The directors of
the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended December 2019, the Group had 1,011 full
time employees in average in the mainland China and Hong
Kong. The Group continues to recruit high calibre individuals
and provide continuing education and training for employees to
help upgrading their skills and knowledge as well as developing
team spirit on an on-going basis. During the year, total staff
costs were approximately RMB107.0 million. Competitive
remuneration packages are structured to commensurate with
reference to individual responsibilities, qualification, experience and
performance.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no significant contingent
liabilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, capital expenditures
of the Group for property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB130.3 million (2018: approximately RMB74.8
million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments
contracted, but not provided for, amounting to approximately
RMB19.3 million (2018: approximately RMB7.1 million).

Under the Dividend Policy, the declaration, payment and amount
of dividends will be subject to the discretion of the Board in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and the articles of association of the Company
and will be dependent upon the Group’s current and recent financial
performance, cash flow position, working capital requirements and
expenditure plan, restriction on distribution of dividends under the
relevant laws, rules and regulations, and any other factors that the
Board deems appropriate.

In determining any dividend amount for a particular year or
interim period, the Board will also take into account, inter alia, the
consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the Company for
the year or period, dividend distributed during the year, and the
retained profits available.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy periodically. There can

be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
for any given period or at all.

32 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

TERERRAEMER (&)

HE_Z-—NF+ZA=+—HIEFE &
%lﬁéqﬂ,%%ﬂ?ﬁﬂ?i%m,OH%EWE

c REBMEREBEFAL > WAEEIR
1ﬁ?iit%ﬁzééﬁiiﬁall T ATET IR & 1R B M R
MG - WiIEEBEBEE - £ B THRK
KL A ANREE106,985,0007T © AN B IR @
FEEMNKE - BEF KBREKRBT AR
FHMEFBES

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H *5ELE
BEXHRAME -

HE_Z-—NF+ZA=+—HIEFE &
ﬁlw@% EREENEAASZHOAEA
K #130,283,0007t(ZZE—\F : HARK
74,792,0007T) °

RZB-AFE+-_A=+—8 KEBEDEFTL
BAREER B RIEL A AR19,332,0007T
(ZE2—N\F : HAREET,058,0007T) °

REZBREBER  BREMNEIR - XHMEER
RARBEE B EPIFE622F R BRI RAR
AIERHETENERE  YERRAKE
BEMIHMBES B2 - ESFH
KR HEE RN IR B R ERERERR
HEREESAEASEENEMNEMESE -

EXerEERAFERTHNTARES

B2 gZR(ETFEE)BENARRE
A ARGEEMNE - FAEDIRAKRE
AR A 53 R B AR BE %U/FEJC’

BRI ZBRERER T{%ha
EI R E IRk B4 € 2 AALE - 4]
T EIRERS



/\Qo 0/

\.“\0,’*7 0 /

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER TEEAREMER(HF)
INFORMATION (Continued)

Gross  Average of daily Average of daily
floor area transactions transactions
Commence (sq.m.) (Supermarket) (Department store)  Estimated no. of

operationon Storey EEHE SHFHRZEE SHEHIRZHE visitors per day

Retail stores HREERE BB (AKX (#) (AE) CHESELES G
FY19 FY18 FY19 FY18 FY19 FY18

20195 20185 20194 20185 2019F 2018F

Xixiang i 1/10/1997 3 8806 3,250 3,711 19 25 4740 5417
Shajing s 1/5/1999 5 20978 1,737 1,984 312 404 2,971 3463
Songgang N 1/1/2001 5 23,134 3,096 3,535 594 769 5349 6,241
Longhua B 1/11/2001 5 24549 2281 2,605 825 1069 4,504 5,327
Gongming N: 1/9/2002 4 21843 4702 5369 866 1122 8,073 9,412
Shiyan R 1/1/2007 1 5852 3,983 4548 593 768 6,635 7,707
Yanbu 5 1/1/2008 2 7,987 1,542 1,761 4 5 2,242 2561
Dashatian AW E 1/1/2009 3 8500 2,330 2,661 93 121 3514 4,035
Sanlian =B 5/12/2009 4 9600 1,730 1,976 - - 2509 2865
Taoyuan i 30/12/2009 4 14,493 2,343 2,675 169 219 3,642 4197
Bantian RA 1/12/2017 12927 2792 3,188 - - 4,048 4622
*Guanlan B 21/12/2019 11,674 - = - = - =

Gross proceeds
per operation area
Gross proceeds per day Average value
Gross proceeds per day BHEEER per transaction

Fri8sIEa% BHMBREAE B IEA%E BRRZTIE
(RMB million) (RMB thousand) (RMB) (RMB)

Retail stores (AREBET) (ARET) (ARETT) (AR¥7T)
FY19 FY18 FY19 FY18 FY19 FY18 FY19 FY18
2019F  2018%F 20195 20184  2019F  2018%F 20195  2018%F

Xixiang i 48.5 60.7 132.9 166.5 16.6 20.8 42.4 48.4
Shajing DI 77.9 97.6 213.5 267.6 10.7 13.4 94.5 107.9
Songgang N 191.4 239.9 524.4 657.3 27.4 34.4 112.7 128.7
Longhua BEE 229.7 287.9 629.4 788.9 30.1 3r.7 145.9 166.6
Gongming UN: 276.1 346.1 756.6 948.3 38.7 48.4 114.4 130.6
Shiyan BE 212.9 266.9 583.4 731.3 124.2 155.6 112.5 128.5
Yanbu L7 20.9 26.2 57.3 71.8 9.6 12.0 28.5 325
Dashatian R H 50.0 62.7 137.1 171.9 29.4 36.7 52.8 60.3
Sanlian =B 19.5 24.3 53.3 66.8 8.5 10.6 47.6 54.4
Taoyuan R 52.2 65.4 143.0 179.2 14.6 18.2 50.7 57.9
Bantian R H 451 56.4 123.5 154.8 13.8 17.2 341 38.9
*Guanlan BR - - - - - - - -

Note: BieE

The above-mentioned are unaudited figures and based on internal records. BT REEZ ERBEASGCERIEL ©

* No statistic figures made as just commenced business on late December 2019. * R2019F 12 ARRE - RIEMTEHMEIE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The Group fully acknowledges its obligations to its shareholders and
investors. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
has been in strict compliance with the applicable legal and
regulatory requirements of domestic or foreign securities regulatory
authorities and has been devoted to improving the transparency of
its corporate governance and the quality of information disclosure.
The Group also attaches great importance on communication with
its shareholders and strives to ensure the timeliness, completeness
and accuracy of its information disclosure to its shareholders and
investors and to the protection the interests of investors. The Board
has strictly complied with the principles of corporate governance
and is dedicated to improving the management quality of the
Company and the standard of corporate governance continually in
order to protect and enhance value for shareholders. To this end,
the Company adopted the principles in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
with the aim of enhancing the quality of corporate governance of
the Group. Such adoption was reflected in the Company’s Articles
of Association, internal rules and regulations and the corporate
governance implementation practices.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code for the
year ended 31 December 2019 as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.6.7 of the Code requires that Independent Non-
executive Directors should attend general meeting. Due to other
commitments, three Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company had not attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 May 2019.

Code provision E.1.2 of the Code requires that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Zhuang Lu
Kun, the Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2019 due to his
other business engagements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

BOARD

The Board consists of six Directors, of whom three are executive
Directors including the chairman of the Board and three of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors. Profiles and particulars
of the chairman of the Company and other Directors are set out
under the section headed “Biography of Directors and Senior
Management”. The term of service of each executive Director
(Independent Non-executive Director) is three years (two years).
Corresponding to the term of service, all executive Directors have
entered into service contracts, which are valid for a term of 3 years
(two years for Independent Non-executive Directors) and renewable
subject to the applicable laws. The names of Directors referred
herein are members of the thirteenth session of the Board. The
principal responsibilities of the Board include:

S to formulate overall strategies, monitor operating and
financial performance and determine proper policies to
manage risks exposures arising in the course of achieving
the Group’s strategic goals;

S to oversee and review the Company’s internal control
system;

S to be ultimately responsible for the preparation of financial
statements of the Company and to assess the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects in a balanced,
clear and comprehensible way in respect of the interim
and annual reports of the Company, other price-sensitive
announcements and disclosure of financial information
pursuant to the Listing Rules, reports submitted to the
regulatory authorities and information disclosure pursuant to
legal requirements;

- the executive Directors/management in charge of various
aspects of the operations of the Company are responsible
for the management of daily operations of the Company.
The Board is responsible for setting and handling policies,
financial and formulating affairs affecting the overall
strategy of the Company, including financial statements,
dividends policy, material changes to accounting policies,
annual operating budget, material contracts, key finance
arrangements, major investments and risk management
policies;

- the management has received clear guidelines and
instructions in respect of their authorities, especially under
all circumstances to report to the Board and to seek Board’s
approval prior to making any decision or entering into any
commitment on behalf of the Company; and
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TEERRE (B)

BOARD (Continued)

- to review the responsibilities and authorities delegated to the
executive Directors/management on a regular basis and to
ensure such arrangements are appropriate.

The members of the Board fully acknowledge their own duties
and obligations in treating all shareholders on an equal basis and
protecting the interests of all investors. The Company ensures that
documents and information relating to the businesses of the Group
are provided to Board members on a timely basis. The Independent
Non-executive Directors perform their duties in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Company has
received confirmation letters from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Director in respect of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at least one-
third of the Directors shall retire by rotation at the annual general
meeting and all newly appointed Directors will have to retire at the
next annual general meeting. The retiring Directors are eligible to
offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the Directors and officers against
losses or liabilities sustained or incurred from execution of their
duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis or
any intervals as deemed appropriate by the Board.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met periodically to review
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (&

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from
2 July 2014 and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing
its effectiveness and achieving a high standard of corporate
governance. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience (professional or otherwise), talents, skills, knowledge,
length of service and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate
decision of all Board appointments should be based on meritocracy
and the likely contributions that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee has reviewed such board
diversity policy in the year.

Continuous Professional Development

The individual training confirmation of each director received for the
year ended 31 December 2019 is summarized below:

Directors

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun TP

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong P

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong H/NEEE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEBTES
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BRI E

Mr. Sun Ju Vi BEEEE

Mr. Ai Ji N RSEHE

BEEEZTILBER
EEEH2014F7A2B EEMZ TR
ARG R ERZBRASEZAMBEIEE
B - ARFBRREFESTENEL T
Flz - EBORBRESSNET - £B K
LRI EERTE - WA RARZER
Tk REARBEENZELEE  B1F
BREBRMER - Fif  XMERHBEES &
B (FEHAM) - 2N - AL - M BRI
BRI REMEZAENEE - REIRTH
ERFTIRTEREAMNENURATEEAES
SERNZELER - REZESGRATE
NERE T % T EBUR »

FEEXRRE
AARBWEIBUEEREBEZE-_T—NF
T A=+ —BUEFEZEIERE - Hif
PR

Attending seminar(s)
relevant to business
or directors’ duties
and responsibilities
HEREERR
E=HENR
ZHEE

Reading Materials

BEER

v/ 4
v/ 4
v/ 4

ANENEN
ANENEN
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COMMITTEES

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are
allocated to three committees which operate under written terms of
reference. The composition of the committees up to the date of this
report is set out in the table below:

Directors

Committee

ENZRES

ZEg®
ETEREENERRTMTESEH =@
ERFEHREEENZTEGHNT - HEAR
FHARIEZEREGHORENT :

Audit Nomination
Committee

REZEE

Remuneration
Committee

FHzES

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (Chairman) HlEmE s (EFR) = = =
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong skt - Member X & =
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong F/NEEE = = -
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES

Directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BIRFE LA Chairman £ /& Member X 8 Member X 8
Mr. Sun Ju Vi BEERE Member {8  Chairman £/& Member fX &
Mr. Ai Ji N REE Member i & Member f&  Chairman E%
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEY

The Company has established an audit committee on 30 April
2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The audit committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors who together have substantial experience in
the fields of accounting, business, legal, corporate governance and
regulatory affairs. The audit committee is responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company
as well as substantial exceptional items, internal controls and
financial reporting matters, which included a review on the audited
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019.

In addition, the audit committee also monitors the appointment of
the Company’s external independent auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee on 30
April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee comprises the three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management. In
addition, it has responsibility for reviewing and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of all the Directors and senior management.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee on 30
April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The nomination committee comprises the three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and management of Board succession.
The responsibilities of the nomination committee are to determine
the criteria for identifying candidates suitably qualified and reviewing
nominations for the appointment of Directors to the Board.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i)
review the Board composition, develop and formulate relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors; (ii)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors; and (iii) assess the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. The Company believes that greater diversity of directors
is good for corporate governance and is committed to attract and
retain candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies
from the widest possible pool of available talents; and to assess
regularly the diversity profile of the Board and, where applicable,
senior management prepared for Board positions under the
succession planning of the Company and the progress on achieving
diversity objectives, if any.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

During the year under review, in response to the amendment to
the CG Code effective on 1 January 2019, the Company has also
adopted the Director Nomination Policy. Such policy sets out the
factors for assessing the suitability and the potential contribution
to the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited
to the followings: character and integrity; qualifications including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;
diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age (18
years old or above), cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;
requirements of independent non-executive directors on the Board
and independence of the proposed independent non-executive
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and commitment in
respect of available time and relevant interest to discharge duties as
a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.
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TEERRE (B)

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new directors and re-election
of directors at general meetings. The Nomination Committee will
review the Director Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its

EERABRNFINBERZEHESTUAR
RERAE LEERFENEF - ELREE
REHESRABR(WER) - ARERETT
ZHER -

effectiveness.

EX(BEERRKXEFEE)NEFELEHN
I

Attendance record of the Directors (including attendance by proxy)
is as follows:

Attendance/Number of meetings

HERY/ RRE

Independent
hoard
Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ committee
Board  committee  committee  committee meeting
meetings meetings meetings meetings BUEES AGM EGM
Bz FhzEe  ¥MZRE REZEE ZEE HRBEAE RENAAE
Executive Directors y7ES
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun HEsEE 55  NATER  NATER  NAMER  NATER 01 NATER
Mr. Zhuang Pel Zhong HisEE 55 NATEE 00  NAMER  NATER 111 111
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong FMERE 55 NATER  NAMER  NATER  NAMNER 01 NATER
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BhELE 505 33 11 000 11 0/ 11
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BREiE 35 13 1n 0/0 1 01 on
Mr. Ai i JUSi 5/5 33 1n 0/0 1 01 on
COMPANY SECRETARY NRME

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo, is
a full time employee of the Company. During the year, he has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors hereby confirm their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. The Directors confirm that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company complied
with the relevant laws and accounting standards and that the
Company would publish the financial statements of the Company
at the appropriate time. The responsibilities of external independent
auditor to the shareholders are set out on pages 62 to 67.
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TEERBRE (B)

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS IN APPENDIX 10 OF THE LISTING RULES
The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its code of conduct for securities transactions of the
Directors of the Company. After specific enquiries to the Directors,
the Board is pleased to confirm that all the Directors have fully
complied with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules during the year under review.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of external independent auditor and reviewing their respectively were
remuneration. During the year, fees paid of approximately RMB1.1
million and RMBO0.3 million respectively were incurred by the Company
to the external independent auditor as service charge for its audit
service of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
compliance service.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to
facilitate the Group to manage its risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee and the senior
management of the Group (“Senior Management”). The Board
determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and has the overall
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the
overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts reviews of the
effectiveness of such systems as least annually, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management
Policy in providing directions in identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the Senior
Management identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes
the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans and risk owners are then established for those risks
considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has its risk management and internal control
department to assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and in performing the internal audit functions for the Group
during the year. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of
internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed
for improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure
prompt remediation actions are taken.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had performed annual
review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the Group’s
ability to cope with its business transformation and changing
external environment; the scope and quality of management’s
review on risk management and internal control systems; result of
internal audit work; the extent and frequency of communication
with the Board in relation to result of risk and internal control
review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and status of compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Board considers the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems were effective during the year.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed
to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements or circulars are not false
or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through
the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in
a clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Group has established an organizational structure, which sets
out the relevant operating policies and procedures, duties and
authorizations.

AUTHORIZATIONS AND CONTROLS

Executive directors and senior management have been delegated
the relevant authorizations in respect of corporate strategies,
policies and contracting liabilities. Budget controls and financial
reporting systems are formulated by relevant departments and are
subject to review by directors in charge. The Group has formulated
relevant procedures to assess, review and approve significant
capital and recurrent expenses, while operating results will be
compared against the budgets and reported to executive directors
on a regular basis.
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TRAINING ON INTERNAL CONTROLS

Directors and senior managements participate in internal control
training programmes provided by the Group, which are designed
to equip them with proper and full knowledge on internal controls,
and provide guidance to them to apply internal control systems on
a consistent basis.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM MANAGEMENT

The Group has put in place a comprehensive accounting
management system, so as to provide the management with
indicators to evaluate its financial and operating performance and
financial information for reporting and disclosure purposes. Any
deviation from expectation will be analysed and explained, and
appropriate steps will be carried out to address issues where
necessary. The Group has set up appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure full, proper and timely record of accounting
and management information, which will be reviewed and
inspected on a regular basis to ensure the financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, accounting policies of the Group and applicable laws and
regulations.

CONTINUING OPERATION

During the year, there are no uncertain events or conditions that
may materially affect the continuing operation of Group on a going
concern.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company reports to the shareholders regarding corporate
information of the Group on a timely and accurate basis. Printed
copies of the 2019 interim report have been sent to all shareholders.
The Company places great emphasis on communication with
shareholders and investors of the Company and improving the
Company’s transparency of information disclosure. As such,
designated officers are assigned to handle relations with investors
and analysts. The Company made disclosures in a faithful, true,
accurate, complete and timely manner in strict accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations, Articles of Association and Listing
Rules. At the same time, the Company places great importance in
collecting and analyzing various comments and recommendations
of analysts and investors on the Company’s operations, which
would be compiled into reports regularly and adopted selectively
in its operations. The Company has set up a website, allowing
investors to access updates on the Company’s particulars,
statutory announcements, management and recent operating
affairs. All published annual reports, interim reports, circulars and
announcements since the date of Listing are and will be included
in the “Investors Relations” section of the website. The Company
persistently adheres to its disclosure principle of honesty and
integrity and actively initiates communications with various parties.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary. The objects of the meeting must
be stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for
putting forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board of the
Company. Contact details are as follows:

Address: Suite 715, Ocean Centre, 5 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Investor Relations
Department)

Fax: 852-36203100

Email: office@szbjh.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to its
Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of
Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.szbjh.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERG

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of each member of the Company are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements. The principal activities of
the operating subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019 are operation and management of retail stores and
other related businesses and provision of financing services in the
PRC.

RESULTS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 68-69.

DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 27 to the financial statements
respectively.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s distributable reserves
amounted to approximately RMB247.5 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Associations of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed or cancelled any of the Company’s
listed shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong

(Chairman)
(Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung
Mr. Sun Ju Yi
Mr. Ai Ji

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Sun Ju Yi and Mr.Ai Ji shall retire from office at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting by rotation. All retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. The re-
election of Directors will be individually voted by Shareholders.

The Board confirmed that the Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. The Company considers that
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
All of the Independent Non-executive Directors are members
of the Company’s audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

BIOGRAPHY OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 11 to 14.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years (two years
for Independent Non-executive Directors) unless terminated by
not less than three months’ (two months’ for Independent Non-
executive Directors) written notice of termination served by either
the Director or the Company. Each of the service contracts further
provides that during the term of the service contract and within two
years upon the termination of service, the Executive Director cannot
engage in any business which is competing or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Company.
The appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement
and rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into
any service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation)). The Company’s policies concerning
remuneration of the Executive Directors are as follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is determined on a case by
case basis depending on the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group;

(if) non-cash benefits may be provided at the discretion of the
Board to the relevant Directors under their remuneration
package; and

(i) the Executive Directors may be granted, at the discretion
of the Board, the share option scheme adopted by the
Company, as part of their remuneration package.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save as disclosed in section under “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this report on pages 52 to 57, no Director nor
controlling shareholders had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Company. There is no contract of significance between the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or its
controlling shareholder during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which (a) were required notification to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which any such Director
and chief executives is taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were required pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by
the Company; or which (c) were required, pursuant to Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
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Number of shares/Underlying Shares Held

sk, HERGHE

Percentage

of Issued

Personal Family Total Shares

Capacity Interest Interest Interest HE 1T

% (PN 5 N HmEE ROBIHL

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (“Mr. Zhuang”) Beneficial Owner 467,985,000 67,500,000 535,485,000 51.61%
SEREsR S A ([HEAE D) EnlAA (Note 1)
(M$7E1)

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong Beneficial Owner 75,000,000 - 75,000,000 7.23%

NS EnlAA
Note: B EE

(1) 67,500,000 Shares are held by Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan (“Mrs. Zhuang”). Since

Mrs. Zhuang is the spouse of Mr. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mr. Zhuang is
deemed to be interested in the said Shares held by Mrs. Zhuang.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief
executive and their associates, had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective spouses or
minor children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and so far as
was known to any Director, the following persons (other than the
interests of certain Directors disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or any
associated Corporation” above), had an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Personal/
corporate
interest
Type of interest Capacity @A/
BHER LT NRER
Mrs. Zhuang Personal Beneficial owner 67,500,000

19N EIN 53 ERBAA
Ms. Zhuang Xiao Yun Personal Beneficial owner 75,000,000
HIERT EIN 53 ERfEAA (Note 2)
(M2)
Ms. Chen Li Jun Personal Beneficial owner 75,000,000
REENT EAER ERBAA (Note 3)
(H&3)

Note:

(1) 467,985,000 Shares are held by Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (“Mr. Zhuang”). Since Mr.
Zhuang is the spouse of Mrs. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mrs. Zhuang is deemed
to be interested in the said Shares held by Mr. Zhuang.

(2) Ms. Zhuang Xiao Yun is the daughter of Mr. Zhuang and Mrs. Zhuang.

()] Ms. Chen Li Jun is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Zhuang and Mrs. Zhuang.
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Percentage
of issued
Family share capital
interest HERTRA
RikE Bl
467,985,000 535,485,000 51.61%
(Note 1)
(M)
- 75,000,000 7.23%
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BIEE
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person known to the
Directors, other than the Directors, who, as at 31 December 2019,
had an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FINTEEEEEBR QA (Shenzhen Baijiahua Group
Company Limited) (“BJH Group”) is owned as to 90% by
Mr. Zhuang and 10% by Mrs. Zhuang. BJH Group is thus an
associate of Mr. Zhuang and therefore a connected person
of the Company. The Group leased two store premises from
BJH Group, details of which are set out as follows:

(i) Lease of store premises for the Longhua Store
Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 5 April 2005
(“Longhua Store Lease Agreement”) between
BJH Group (as landlord) and Shenzhen Baijiahua
Department Stores Company Limited (“BJH
Department Stores”) (as tenant), BJH Department
Stores leases the store premises situated at Levels
1 to 5, Jiahua Emporium, No. 291 Renmin Bei
Road, Longhua Street, Baoan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC with a gross floor
area of approximately 24,549.25 square metres
for a term of 15 years commencing from 1 March
2004 and expiring on 28 February 2019 at a
monthly rent of RMB490,985 with triennial increase
of 5% starting from 1 March 2008. Pursuant to a
supplemental lease agreement dated 18 November
2006 between BJH Group and BJH Department
Stores, the parties agreed that if the Company
cannot meet the requirements in respect of
continuing connected transactions (including but
not limited to obtaining approval by independent
shareholders), BJH Department Stores has the right
to terminate the transactions without any payment
or compensation. Pursuant to the Longhua Store
Lease Agreement (as supplemented), the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB1,193,591 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB1,200,000.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BFERBRS (&)
(Continued)

(ii) Lease of store premises for the Songgang Store
Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 30 April 2005
(“Songgang Store Lease Agreement”) between BJH
Group (as landlord) and BJH Department Stores (as
tenant) and as supplemented by two supplemental
agreements dated 18 November 2006 and 29 March
2007 respectively both made between BJH Group
and BJH Department Stores, BJH Department Stores
leases the store premises situated at Levels 1 to
5, Jiahua Emporium, No. 293 Songgang Section
of State Avenue 107, Baoan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC with a gross floor
area of approximately 23,134 square metres for a
term of 15 years commencing from 1 March 2004
and expiring on 28 February 2019 at a monthly rent
of RMB458,260 during the period from 1 March
2004 to 30 April 2005 and RMB462,680 with effect
from 1 May 2005. The monthly rent is subject to a
triennial increase of 5% starting from 1 March 2008.
Pursuant to a supplemental lease agreement dated
18 November 2006 between BJH Group and BJH
Department Stores, the parties agreed that if the
Company cannot comply with the requirements
in respect of continuing connected transactions
(including but not limited to obtaining approval by
independent shareholders), BJH Department Stores
has the right to terminate the transactions under
the Songgang Store Lease Agreement by giving
written notice to BJH Group, without any payment
or compensation. Pursuant to the Songgang Store
Lease Agreement (as supplemented), the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB1,124,781 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB1,130,000.

Certain commercial properties are leased to BJH Group
pursuant to a lease agreement entered into between
BJH Department Stores and BJH Group for commercial
purposes. The amount of rental income received by the BJH
Department Stores in respect of the leasing of commercial
properties was RMB2,229,437.76 for the year ended 31
December 2019, and has not exceeded the annual cap of
RMB2,229,437.76. The relevant amount which are expected
to be receivable by BJH Department Stores will not exceed
RMB2,302,534.08 for the year ending 31 December 2020.
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FINTEEFHERZEBR AT (Shenzhen Jiahua Real
Estate Development Company Limited) (“JH Real Estate”) is
owned as to 18% by Mrs. Zhuang and 82% by BJH Group
(a company owned as to 90% by Mr. Zhuang and 10% as
to Mrs. Zhuang). Since Mrs. Zhuang is the spouse of Mr.
Zhuang, she is an associate of Mr. Zhuang. Since Mrs.
Zhuang is interested in the equity capital of JH Real Estate so
as to exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the
voting power at general meetings of JH Real Estate, JH Real
Estate is an associate of Mr. Zhuang and also a connected
person of the Company. The Group leased three stores
premises from JH Real Estate, details of which are set out as
follows:

(i)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 6 November
2006 (“Shiyan Store Lease Agreement”) between
JH Real Estate (as landlord) and BJH Department
Stores (as tenant), BJH Department Stores leases
the store premises situated at Level 1 of Commercial
Podium, Jiahua Hao Yuan, Western Shiyan Avenue,
Shiyan Street, Baoan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province, the PRC with a gross floor area of
approximately 5,851.50 square metres for a term of
15 years commencing from 16 November 2006 and
expiring on 15 November 2021 at a monthly rent of
RMB222,357 with triennial increase of 5%. Pursuant
to a supplemental agreement dated 6 November
2006 between JH Real Estate and BJH Department
Stores, the parties agreed that if the Company cannot
meet with the requirements in respect of continuing
connected transactions (including but not limited to
obtaining approval by independent shareholders),
BJH Department Stores has the right to terminate
the transactions under the Shiyan Store Lease
Agreement by giving written notice to JH Real Estate
without any payment or compensation. Pursuant to
the Shiyan Store Lease Agreement, the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB3,243,316 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB3,250,000. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB3,250,000 for the year ending 31
December 2020.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

=+ j==
FH&

BB S (&’)

R EEFSMERBEERAR(E
EEWE AR AHEE18%  THAH
FEEEE(HRIAHEREERIEXR
HEAEI0% M10% AT ) HEE82% °
ARERAREREENTER KA
HREHEERNBEALT - AREAR
EERMERBRE Bl EEE
EHEREREG EITFERIEHITE
0% H A EIRERE - EEEME
BHEHEENBBAL  WALRA
BANEBAL AEEREFEERME
HME-—M/EREME  EEFBEHINW
—F :

() BEEERHE(EAEE)
HEEEEE(EAERP)R
ZEERF+—ARHEIUN
HEpZ(IEEBEEHE
W) AEEREHEEN
RABEERE R TEREA
EEEREXNBAAEESD
FISEEIBNEREDE &
S| FE#5,851.50F 7 K -
AP F+—A+~
ARE—E-——F+—F+7
BiEm  BH+AF - AFEA
R#202,35770 * B =FiRiE
5% - RIEFEEEHWERFE
EFER_ZTENF+—AN
BRI M@ HE  LOEH
B EMARBREETHED
X S M E (BIBEETER
ISE RS E)  BEE
BEARREERHERTE
FEEA - EHAEDEAAR
REETRIEAEEEERE
BENRS REBEEEEE
HEWD  AEEAEHE"
E-AFF+-A=Z+—HIF
EEFEIMNMBAREHAAR
#3,243,3167T * WEBHF
€ LR AR#3,250,0007T °
EHEEEEEHE S -F
F+_A=Z+—BHIFEER
MNEESETERBARE
3,250,0007T °



Report of the

EEERE(E

Directors (Continued)
)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(i

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 23 February
2009 (“Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement”)
between JH Real Estate (as landlord) and BJH
Department Stores (as tenant), BJH Department
Stores leases the store premises situated at Leve
1 of Commercial Podium, Jiahua Shuyuan Yage
Southwestern Side of Dabao Road, Xinan Jiedao,
Baoan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC with a gross floor area of approximately
2,693.69 square metres for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1 March 2009 and expiring on 28
February 2012 for a monthly rental of RMB80,810.7.
Pursuant to the Supplementary Lease Agreement
dated 28 January 2010 between JH Real Estate and
BJH Department Stores, the monthly rental has been
reduced to RMB53,873.8 effective from 1 February
2010 to the end of the original lease. Pursuant to
a Supplementary Lease Agreement dated 30 May
2011 between JH Real Estate and BJH Department
Stores, the lease has been renewed to another
three years from 1 June 2011 to 31 May 2014 with
a monthly rental of RMB53,873.8. Pursuant to a
Lease Agreement dated 30 May 2014 between JH
Real Estate and BJH Department Stores, the lease
has been renewed to another three years from 1
June 2014 to 31 May 2017 with a monthly rental
of RMB56,567.49. Pursuant to a Lease Agreement
dated 31 May 2017 between JH Real Estate and
BJH Department Stores, the lease has been renewed
to another three years from 1 June 2017 to 31 May
2020 with a monthly rental of RMB56,567.49. The
parties to the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement
agreed that if the Company cannot meet with the
requirements in respect of continuing connected
transactions (including but not limited to obtaining
approval by independent shareholders), BJH
Department Stores has the right to terminate the
transactions under the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease
Agreement by giving written notice to JH Real Estate
without any payment or compensation. Pursuant to
the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement dated 31
May 2017, the total annual consideration paid by BJH
Department Stores was approximately RMB678,810
for the year ended 31 December 2019, and has
not exceeded the annual cap of RMB700,000.
The relevant amount which are expected to be
payable by BJH Department Stores will not exceed
approximately RMB300,000 for the year ending 31
December 2020
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(i)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 25 August
2016 (“Bantian Lease Agreement”) between JH
Real Estate (as landlord) and Shenzhen Baijiahua
Commercial Management Limited (“BJH CM”) (as
tenant), BJH CM leases the shopping mall situated
at Level 1-6 of Jiahua Ling Hui Plaza located in the
South-west side of junction of Ji Hua Road and Wu
He West Street, Bantian Street, Longgang District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC with a
gross floor area of approximately 34,743.62 square
metres for a term of 15 years commencing from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2031 for a monthly
rental of RMB1,806,668.24 with a 5% increment on
the monthly rent every 3 years. The parties to the
Bantian Lease Agreement agreed that if the Company
cannot meet with the requirements in respect of
continuing connected transactions (including but
not limited to obtaining approval by independent
shareholders), BJH CM has the right to terminate the
transactions under the Bantian Lease Agreement by
giving written notice to JH Real Estate without any
payment or compensation. Pursuant to the Bantian
Lease Agreement, the total annual consideration paid
by BJH CM was RMB21,680,018.88, for the year
ended 31 December 2019, and has not exceeded
the annual cap of RMB21,680,018.88. The relevant
amount which are expected to be payable by BJH
CM will not exceed RMB22,764,019.82 for the year
ending 31 December 2020.

Certain commercial properties are leased to Jiahua Real
Estate pursuant to a lease agreement entered into between
BJH Department Stores and Jiahua Real Estate for
commercial purposes. The amount of rental income received
by the BJH Department Stores in respect of the leasing of
commercial properties was RMB730,040.04 for the year
ended 31 December 2019, and has not exceeded the annual
cap of RMB730,040.04.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the terms of the continuing connected
transactions referred to above are made in the ordinary and
usual course of our business, on an arm’s length basis and on
normal commercial terms which are no less favorable than terms
available from independent third parties. The Directors (including
the Independent Non-executive Directors) confirm that these
transactions have been conducted in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions and are of the view that the
terms and conditions of these transactions are fair and reasonable
and are in the best interests of our Company and our shareholders
as a whole.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors,
are also of the view that the Annual Caps are fair and reasonable as
far as our shareholders taken as a whole are concerned.

The Directors confirm that they have received a confirmation from
its auditor regarding the matters as stated in Chapter 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules for the continuing connected transactions.

The Directors confirm that the disclosure requirement in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules has been
complied with by the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue attributable to the
largest customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.16% of
the total revenue for the year and the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for
the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, purchases attributable to
the largest supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 4.3%
of the total purchases for the year and the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers and major customers noted above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined in the Main Board
Listing Rules) has an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Company or has any other conflict
of interest with the Company during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 have been reviewed by the audit committee
before recommending to the Board for approval.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to, the shares, they are advised to
consult an expert.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM LISTING

The net proceeds raised from the Company’s newly issued and
listed shares on the Stock Exchange in May 2007 (after deduction
of related issuance expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$265,000,000.

As of 31 December 2019, approximately HK$207,834,000 of
the proceeds so raised was used, and the unused proceeds of
approximately HK$57,166,000 was deposited with banks, the
security of which was adequately ensured.

Details of the used proceeds raised of approximately
HK$207,834,000 are set out as follows:

° as to approximately HK$29,000,000 for acquisition of the
business of a retail chain in Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$28,300,000 for opening of new
stores in Yanbu Foshan and Ronggui Foshan, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$8,750,000 for opening of a new
store in Nanning Guangxi, the PRGC;

° as to approximately HK$4,350,000 for opening of two new
stores in Xian Baoan Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$10,400,000 for opening of a new
store in Luohu Shenzhen, the PRC;
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USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM LISTING
(Continued)

as to approximately HK$15,800,000 for opening of a new
store in Buji Shenzhen, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$14,300,000 for opening of another
new store in Nanning Guangxi, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$3,690,000 for opening of a new
supermarket in Bantian Longgang, Shenzhen, the PRGC;

as to approximately HK$8,800,000 for opening of a
restaurant and two beverage kiosks in Shenzhen, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$3,600,000 for opening of a theme
restaurant and a Chinese restaurant in Baoan and Longgang
Shenzhen, the PRC respectively;

as to approximately HK$9,200,000 for setting up of a
procurement centre in Shiyan Shenzhen, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$12,919,000 for the purchase of
transportation equipment;

as to approximately HK$15,000,000 for the purchase of
office equipment;

as to approximately HK$3,000,000 for the upgrade of the
MIS;

as to approximately HK$725,000 to promote the Company’s
brand image; and

as to approximately HK$40,000,000 for the refurbishments
of existing retail stores.

The unused proceeds will be used by the Company for the
purposes as set out in the section headed “Future plans and use of
proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 8 May 2007.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out in the sections of Chairman’s Statement,
Management Discussion and Analysis and Five Years Financial
Summary on pages 6 to 10, pages 15 to 33 and pages 215 to 216
respectively of this annual report.

The Group recognises that its employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality products and services to its customers
and enhancing co-operation with its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a clean, energy saving and
harmonious environmental conservation policy.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing
Rules will be published within three months after the publication of
the annual report of the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT
IMPACT ON THE COMPANY

The Group is continuously monitoring their compliance to ensure
that the Group abides by such laws and regulations from time
to time. Besides those general laws and regulations such as the
Company Law of the PRC, the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Group has also complied in all material respects with
all the laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business of the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board
Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

30 March 2020
Shenzhen, the PRC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R T

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

E5E : +852 2218 8288
{55 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiahua
Stores Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 214, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 2B ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Refer to notes 2.6, 4 and 15 in the consolidated financial
statements.

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) to be
approximately RMB292,100,000 as at 31 December 2019 with a
fair value gain for the year ended 31 December 2019 recorded in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of approximately
RMB800,000.

We focused on this area because in determining the fair value of
investment properties, significant estimation and judgement were
applied by the management in selecting appropriate valuation
methodology and key input parameters, including yields and future
lease income. To support management’s determination, the Group
engaged an independent external valuer to perform valuation on the
investment properties.

Our response:
Our key audit procedures included:

- assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology
and reasonableness of the key input and assumptions
adopted in the valuation;

- checking the accuracy of the input data used to supportive
evidence;

- involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment on
the reasonableness of key assumptions and estimations and
appropriateness of the valuation methodology; and

- evaluating of the independence, competency and objectivity
of the independent external valuer engaged by management
and auditor’s expert.

Refer to notes 2.9, 4, 12 and 13 in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group had property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets with carrying amounts of approximately RMB264,614,000
and RMB643,753,000 respectively as at 31 December 2019,
which are subject to impairment assessments when impairment
indications are identified. As at 31 December 2019, the
management assessed that impairment indications existed for the
property, plant and equipment and the right-of-use assets which
are allocated to the cash-generating units under the segment
“operation and management of retail stores and other related
businesses” (the “CGUs”). Accordingly, the management has
performed impairment assessment on the CGUs in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR (48)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Based on the value-in-use calculations of the CGUs, the
management has concluded that impairment provisions are not
necessary for the property, plant and equipment and the right-of-
use assets.

We have identified the impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter due to
the preparation of value-in-use calculations of the underlying CGUs
requires significant estimation and judgment by the management
with respect to the key assumptions adopted in the cash flow
projection including future revenue growth, rates for terminal values
and the adoption of discount rate.

Our response:
Our key audit procedures included:

- checking the mathematical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculation;

= challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions of the
cash flow projection including future revenue growth during
forecast period, inputs for terminal value and discount rate
based on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

- reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budget and considering the reasonableness of this
evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not

cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 2B ()

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
(Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR (48)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

66

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 2B ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS(Conhnued)
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number PO5057

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOM
mEEZHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTFIT
Continuing operations BFEREER
Revenue WA 6(a) 645,329 710,336
Cost of inventories sold EEFERAR (354,233) (410,424)
291,096 299,912
Other operating income EH g2 A 6(b) 65,703 71,509
Increase in fair value of investment BEYE 2 N F{EE N
properties 15 800 500
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SR A (290,102) (284,905)
Administrative expenses THRAX (60,063) (49,997)
Other operating expenses H gz (5,455) (3,465)
Finance costs A& A 7 (51,750) -
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRATSHIR(E18), & F 8(a) (49,771) 33,554
Income tax expense ISR 9 (2,571) (9,085)
(Loss)/profit from continuing BELEEBZFA
operations for the year (B18),/ %= F (52,342) 24,469
Discontinued operation DRIEEEEK
Profit from discontinued operation ERIMEEER
for the year F R 8(b) - 734
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BR) T (52,342) 25,203
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 E W=
ltem that will not be reclassified TrEEHRHEEBRZ
to profit or loss: HH -
Change in fair value of equity BAFEFAEMET
instrument at fair value through Wz EmTAEN
other comprehensive income NHERS - 565
Other comprehensive income FEHMEZEmKE
for the year - 565
Total comprehensive income FEZERGZERE
for the year (52,342) 25,768
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2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥TT ARETT

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable ZxA B#EE AEEER

to owners of the Company: (BR), &
- Continuing operations —REKEEY (52,342) 24,469
- Discontinued operation — BRI ER S 734
(52,342) 25,203
Total comprehensive income AATREEAELEEZE
attributable to owners of the Wes 4858 .
Company:
- Continuing operations — BT (52,342) 25,034
- Discontinued operation — BRI ET = 734
(52,342) 25,768
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/ FERAQTHEE AL
profit attributable to the owners (B]),wmFz
of the Company during the year: SR (EE) B
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (EE) B
- basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAR K
(AR¥%5)
— Continuing operations —HEREER 1 (5.05) 2.36
— Discontinued operation — BRI ETR 11 S 0.07
11 (5.05) 2.43
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIO

e MR &R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

2019
—E-hF

RMB’000
ARBTR

2018
—F-N\F
RMB’000
ARETT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ WE kEE 12 264,614 182,046
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 13 643,753 =
Investment properties "EYE 15 292,100 291,300
Prepaid land lease SELDfub: iheoa 14 S 12,401
Intangible assets B EE 16 4,970 1,305
Deposits paid, prepayments and BffEe - BRFHRE
other receivables T B FE R TR 17 31,448 23,282
Interests in an associate R—EEE a2 18 - -
1,236,885 510,334
Current assets nBEE
Inventories and consumables FERSFER 19 28,136 52,576
Trade and loan receivables FEWE SRR R E K 20 70,809 60,859
Deposits paid, prepayments and BffEe BNFZIER
other receivables Ho b e W sk IE 17 51,955 53,087
Cash and bank balances REe RIRTTEERS 21 117,737 270,896
Tax recoverable B {EE A 57 -
268,694 437,418
Current liabilities REBASE
Trade payables BB SRR 22 98,057 172,003
Contract liabilities BHERE 23 20,242 23,619
Deposits received, other payables BliES - HibEs
and accruals RIEKEFTE A 23 143,651 110,451
Amount due to a director e —REEIE 24 59 59
Lease liabilities HEEARE 13 75,840 =
Provision for taxation TRIaEH 3,723 11,961
341,572 318,093
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) BEEFE (72,878) 119,325
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERRHER 1,164,007 629,659
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2019 2018

—B-hE T )\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR%ET T ARETFIT
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Lease liabilities HEaE 13 605,995 =
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFRIESE 25 24,131 23,931
630,126 23,931
Net assets BEFE 533,881 605,728
EQUITY Exm
Share capital RN 26 10,125 10,125
Reserves & 27 523,756 595,603
Total equity ESEE 533,881 605,728
Zhuang Lu Kun Zhuang Pei Zhong
HERE HE AR
Director Director
EZEa =

FERARRRERAT —T-NFFH 7



Share
capital

b

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Statutory
welfare
reserve

EERA

e g

Share
premium

Statutory
reserve

Merger
reserve

AR

KATER AR

[nvestment
revaluation
reserve

REEf
i

]

Other revaluation

reserve

i

resenve
VEEL
i

Translation
reserve

L

Retained
profits

REA

Dividend
proposed

RIERE

A1 January 2018 RZE-\&
-R-H 10126 252478 64,715 2,286 12,373 (7,56) (182) 431 (969) 246,268 19816 599,776
Proft for the year Efgi - - - - - - - - -5 - B
Chenge infairvalue o~ RATEF AL
equity instrument at 2ENEER
farvalie through other ~~ TEATEES
comprehensive income - - - - - 565 - - - - - 565
Total compreensive ERRENGAE
income for the year - - - - - 566 - - - 2528 - 5768
Trangfer upon disposal REERLTE
of afinancial asset at FALHZE
farvalue thoughother 748
comprehensive income BELEY - - - - - 7,000 - - - (7000 - -
Disposal of asuosidiary ~ HE-FHEAT - - - - - - 182 - . (18 - -
Dividend approved “5-tEy
for 2017 ErERE 10D - - - - - - - - - - (1981 [1981)
Proposed final diidend ~~ ~%F—\£
for 2018 AEFERE 100 - - - - - - - - - (19805 19,505 -
Transfer to statutory By o
reserve - - 1,607 - - - - - - (1,607) - -
A3 Decomber 2018 R-F-\E
and 1 January 2019 t-f=1-H
RZE-NE
-A-8 10125 252,478 66,222 2,286 12,373 - - 431 (969) 243,217 19,505 605,728
Loss for the year EhEE - - - - - - - - - (3 - B3
Total comprenensive FREENG
income for the year &8 - - - - - - - - - (52,342 - (5234
Dividend approved “T-\F2
for 2018 BiERE 10D - - - - - - - - - - (19505 (19505
Transfer to statutory EHEATHE
reserve - - 619 - - - - - - (619) - -
At31December 2019 RZE-NE
tzA=t-8 10125 252,478 66,841 2,286 12,373 - - 43 (969) 190,316 - 533,881
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\ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PN g1
HERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NF+-A=+—HItFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTFIT
Cash flows from operating activities R&EFEHNRELRE
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSHIRT (E18), & F
— From continuing operations —REFELEED (49,771) 33,554
— From discontinued operation —REERIEEEER 8(b) - (11,607)
(49,771) 21,947
Adjustments for: AT HIRELAE -
Interest income FLEMA 6(b) (4,099) (4,309)
Interest on lease liabilities HESEFE 7 51,750 -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BE&
equipment HETE 8 45,725 43,951
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEENE 13 95,533 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BER
and equipment BB EE 8 35 706
Increase in fair value of investment WEME N FEE N
properties 15 (800) (500)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR Lt & 55 8 S 261
Amortisation of intangible assets EmEERE 8 506 1,663
Impairment loss on other receivables  H {ih fE W 318 7 RE 18 8 - 1,828
Obsolete inventories written-off and R EfF S i34 &
inventories loss FEEE 8 84 249
Written-off of property, plant and Y - R KRR
equipment 8 1,336 -
Loss on lease termination LI EE 1 -
Written-off of an intangible asset —IRE A E M 8 - 1,399
Operating profit before working EEES B BRI E N
capital changes 140,300 67,195
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEekSFERELD,(E)
and consumables 24,356 (6,216)
Increase in trade and loan receivables FEW S 78R3 K & 2L N (9,950) (15,366)
Decrease in deposits paid, BEffEe  ENFTENREM
prepayments and other receivables FEM R IB R 488 1,294
Decrease in trade payables FERTE SERFUR (73,946) (21,147)
(Decrease)/increase in contract AHBECRD)
liabilities (3,377) 8,957
Increase in deposits received, other  BUkiks - EMENZHIER
payables and accruals FEETE LM 50,310 39,426
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meReRER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR%T ARET T
Cash generated from operations REEBREHRE 128,181 74,143
Interest received EHAE 4,099 4,309
Income tax paid BHATIER (10,666) (10,072)
Net cash from operating activities A R T S IE AR 121,614 68,380
Cash flows from investing activities REZFZENREFRE
Increase in deposits paid and BEHES RIBA FIEHE N
prepayments (12,006) (3,514)
Purchase of property, plant and BAMZE - BEREE
equipment (126,443) (71,948)
Purchase of intangible assets BABTEE (4,171) (490)
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HEWE - BE&
plant and equipment R FTISRIA 619 115
Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash & —RI/E A &
disposed (MR EERE) 33 = 9,352
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits R =1{E A% ZH~
maturing over three months RITERCGEM), WD (10,000) 20,000
Net cash used in investing activities &% B fTFHHE < F5E (152,001) (46,485)
Cash flows from financing activities BEFZEMNRERE
Repayment of principal portion of EEHEaB ALY
lease liabilities 34 (61,517) -
Repayment of interest portion of BEHEBEZMNEHNS
lease liabilities 34 (51,750) -
Dividends paid to owners of the ERAERRERARE
Company (19,505) (19,816)
Net cash used in financing activities b &% B F7 FH1E < F58 (132,772) (19,816)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash REREESZEEY
and cash equivalents CR2), /B inFE (163,159) 2,079
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HBRER
at 1 January REZEEY 260,896 258,817
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—B®
at 31 December REeERESZEEY 21 97,737 260,896
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its registered
office and its principal place of business are located at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and Level 4, Jiahua
Ming Yuan, 2146 Xinhu Road, Baoan Central District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) respectively. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 were approved for issue by the board of directors on
30 March 2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements on pages 62 to 214
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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2.

76

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or revised HKFRS and the
impacts on the financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 3.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation
of the financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events
and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties which are stated at
fair values. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

During the year, the Group has incurred a
loss of RMB52,342,000 and at the end of the
reporting period, its current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB72,878,000. The
Group’s operation, financial performance,
cash flows and financial position for the year
2020 are expected to be adversely affected
by the COVID-19 pandemic as disclosed in
note 38. Notwithstanding these conditions,
the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
consider that the Group will be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due for 12
months from 31 December 2019, on the basis
that:

0] a related company of the Group, ;&3
TEEFHERZEFR AT (Shenzhen
Jiahua Real Estate Development
Company Limited®) (“JH Real Estate”), a
company in which Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun
and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, the spouse
of Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun, have beneficial
interests, has confirmed irrevocably and
unconditionally to provide continuing
financial support to the Group so as to
enable the Group to meet its obligations
and liabilities as and when they fall
due and to continue its day-to-day
business operations as a viable going
concern notwithstanding any present
or future financial difficulties for coming
12 months at least up to 31 December
2020;

L For identification purpose only
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2.

78

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

the management of the Group has
prepared a cash flow projection
covering a period of 12 months from
31 December 2019. The cash flow
projection has taken into account
the anticipated cash flows to be
generated from the Group’s business
during the period under projection.
The Directors, after making due
enquires and considering the basis
of the management’s projection
described above, believe that there
will be sufficient financial resources to
continue its operations and to meet its
financial obligation as and when they
fall due in the next 12 months from 31
December 2019;

the management of the Group has been
endeavouring to improve the Group’s
operating results and cash flows
through various cost control measures;
and

the management of the Group will
endeavour to seek for additional
sources of financing.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1

(b)

(c)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

Accordingly, the financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in
business as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to reduce the values
of the assets to net realisable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
respectively.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_F-AE+-A=+—AILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

80

POLICIES (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”) in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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2.

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint
control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-F-AE+-A=t—RAILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between

the Group and its associates are recognised only
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor’'s share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of
the associate. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying amount and recognised the
amount adjacent to share of results of investments
accounted for using equity method in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so
as to write off their cost or valuation net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:
Leasehold buildings 54 years or
over the terms of
land use rights,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 3to 10 years or
over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles and tools 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%

equipment

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not held for sale in the ordinary course of business,
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Investment properties
are measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group
chooses not to classify and account for these
property interests as investment property.

Payments for prepaid land lease (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2018)

Payments for prepaid land lease held for own use
under operating leases represent up-front payments
to acquire long-term interests in lessee-occupied
properties. These payments are stated at cost and
are amortised over the period of the lease on a
straight-line basis as an expense.

Intangible assets

(i) Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line
basis over their useful lives as follows. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss and included in administrative expenses.

Computer software 5-10 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_F-AE+-A=+—AILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

86

POLICIES (Continued)

(ii) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is
any indication that they may be impaired.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment by
comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (see note 2.9).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease to the extent of its revaluation
surplus.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease, intangible assets
with finite useful lives, prepayments and investments
in subsidiaries and associate to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use)
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash-
generating unit, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the Company/group
entities in currencies other than the currency of
the primary economic environment in which it/they
operate(s) (the “functional currency”) are recorded at
the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised in OCI, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in OCI.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Foreign currency (Continued)

TERETBERBE(E)

2.10 SN (&)

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in
profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term monetary
items forming part of the Group’s net investment in
the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to
OCI and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as
part of the profit or loss on disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue is net of value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

S does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15.

(i) Sale of goods

The Group sells goods directly to retail
customers within retail stores. Revenue
recognised from sale of goods is recognised at
a point in time when the product is transferred
to the customers. There is generally only
one performance obligation. Payment of
the transaction price is due immediately
when the customers purchase the good.
Discounts, coupons and other cash incentive
to customers are accounted for as reduction of
the transactions prices.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

U

(i)

Sale of goods (Continued)

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers
from the sale of goods provides customers a
right of return. These rights of return allow the
returned goods to be refund in cash. The right
of return gives rise to variable consideration.
The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until
the associated uncertainty is subsequently
resolved. The application of the constraint on
variable consideration increases the amount
of revenue that will be deferred. In addition, a
refund liability and a right to recover returned
goods assets are recognised.

Commissions from concessionaire sales
The Group recognised commission income
over time which it is entitled and is based
on certain percentage of sales made by
the concessionaires in accordance with the
terms of contracts. When they fail to meet the
minimum guarantee income in accordance
with the terms of certain contracts, the
minimum guarantee amount is recognised
as income as it is the amount that the Group
has the right to receive. Invoices are usually
payable from 30 to 90 days.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Customer loyalty programme and prepaid
gift cards

The Group operates a customer loyalty
programme where retail customers
accumulate points for purchases made which
entitle them to redeem award points for
discounts in future purchase. The transaction
price of award points is allocated to the
product and the award points on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Revenue from
the award points and prepaid gift cards is
recognised when the award points and prepaid
gift cards are redeemed. Contract liabilities are
recognised until the award points and prepaid
gift cards are redeemed. Contract liabilities in
relation to customer loyalty programme and
prepaid gift cards were included in contract
liabilities

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is
recognised in accordance with note 2.12.

Sales of food and catering

The Group sells food and catering directly
to customers within restaurants. Revenue
recognised from sale of food and catering
is recognised at a point in time when the
food and catering is transferred to the
customers upon sale. There is generally only
one performance obligation. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately when
the food and catering is transferred to the
customers. Discounts, coupons and other
cash incentive to customers are accounted for
as reduction of the transactions prices.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Administration and management fee
income

The Group provides administration and
management service to operators of
concessionaire counters and customers. The
administration and management fee income
is recognised overtime when the Group
transfers the control of services over time
based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a proportion
of the total services to be provided, as the
operators of concessionaire counters and
customers receive and consume the benefits
simultaneously. Invoices are usually receivable
from 30 to 90 days.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis
on the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(viii)

(ix)

Contract assets and contract liabilities
Contract assets are rights to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the
Company has transferred to a customer
when that right is conditional on something in
additional to the passage of time.

Contract liabilities are obligations to transfer
goods or services to customer for which the
Company has received consideration, or for
which an amount of consideration is due from
the customer.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable
consideration, the Group recognises the
amount of consideration to which it is entitled
using the most likely amount, which better
predicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group is entitled. The amount
of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is
highly probable that such an inclusion will not
result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with
the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

x)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent). The Group
is a principal if it controls the specified goods
or service before that goods or service is
transferred to a customer. The Group is an
agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified goods or
service by another party. In this case, the
Group does not control the specified goods
or service provided by another party before
that goods or service is transferred to the
customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it
recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other
party.

The Group acts as an agent for concessionaire
sales as the Group does not control
the specific goods provided by the
concessionaires before goods transferred to a
customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M IRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i)
leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii)
leases for which the underlying asset is of low-
value. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for both
of the choices. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 (A) Leases (accounting policies applied from
1 January 2019) (Continued)

U

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and
buildings that are held for rental or capital
appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and
are carried at fair value. The Group accounts
for leasehold land and buildings which is held
for own use under HKAS 16 and are carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation. The
Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises its judgement and determines that
it is a separate class of asset. As a result, the
right-of-use asset arising from the properties
under tenancy agreements are carried at
depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 (A) Leases (accounting policies applied from
1 January 2019) (Continued)

U

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use
the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease
payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change
in the in substance fixed lease payments or
a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 (A) Leases (accounting policies applied from
1 January 2019) (Continued)

(ii)

Accounting as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the
lease is classified as an operating lease. Rental
income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on the straight-line basis over the
lease term.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease
or as an operating lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.
If the head lease is a short-term lease to which
the Group applies the exemption described in
note 2.12(i), then the Group classifies the sub-
lease as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-F-AE+-A=t—RAILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease income receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for
resale and are stated at lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of merchandise, representing
the purchase cost, is calculated on the first-in, first-
out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make to sale.

Consumables for own consumption are stated at
cost. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) =
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

TESTHRREEE)

102

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowable for income tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Except for goodwill and recognised assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate
to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the
reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

215

2.16

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in OCI in which
case the taxes are also recognised in OCI or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in
which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

2.

FERRERERAT

TERETBERBE(E)

214

2.15

2.16

FRr&H (&)

EEHRBEAERRHBAR
& N R R L EE B B AR
ERMELRRTE B Z R
R AR B A =
BEEE - BZRLERNAERL
RIRAKAT B3 A RIERITR -

FSBINIB R AR - RIF
P15 750 7 o Ath 22 T Wk 2 o
REEEBRAAERR - ME
BERT - HASREMEZE
WaENER - HRIEZER
FENESREEREANERR
B MAELBRT  ZEREA
TRE N e NHFER ©

RERREEEY

RelReEBYWRERTR
FHERE - FHRRIRITZEH
FHRMERENHAS=@EA
FUAT - AIERBH®RAENE
BRELEEEHRRTIRZ
SERBERRE

SRTHR

(i) SWMEE
tHMEE(LEEAH
BE I EKE SRR
BN BIRRATFEE
R EREITEM
BEAEERENZSK
AE (MBI IEEA
FEFABRZ(TEA
FEFAEBEZ] ME
B) WEEAGEDD
DHEWKE ZERRE X
ERGEREE -

“E-NEFFR 103



2.

104

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

U

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

U

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest rate
method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised
in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or
loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include
financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition
at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Financial instruments (Continued) 2.16 T E(E)
(i) Financial assets (Continued) (i) SWEEE)
Debt instruments (Continued) EFTAE)
Financial assets with cash flows that are not RemnEMERATH
solely payments of principal and interest are FEMZHEREER
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective N EFABZETY
of the business model. Notwithstanding the EREE - MAmERE
criteria for debt instruments to be classified BEX AA - BEWNE
at amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described XAt EFS T AR A
above, debt instruments may be designated A DA SR AN T BR Sl iR
at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so NEEFAEMZEUR
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an o HEESEBR SR E
accounting mismatch. WA SEHIERE - BIER
I,EJZ@E’\%BﬁTJEw
BEBEAFER AR
Equity instruments RATA
On initial recognition of an equity investment LSRN IEFIEESE
that is not held for trading, the Group could & AN 1E & B - NEEF
irrevocably elect to present subsequent ALEZA PSR H
changes in the investment’s fair value in other fh 2 E Wz 2R E
comprehensive income. This election is made NEEEMNEEES -
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity HEEZEERFHFREEK
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair EREBMmMEL - #&A
value. Dividend income are recognised in profit FEFAEMEE R
or loss unless the dividend income clearly IR AIE B A FER
represents a recovery of part of the cost of 2 o RERAFEEZRES
the investments. Other net gains and losses R - BRIER B UL AR
are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified BREEWEHIZERK
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments Ko HApthFlas K E1E
are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in REMEEWRETER
fair value, dividends and interest income are TreEHHsBEEIE
recognised in profit or loss. @ FTAEMRATA
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit loss (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

Measurements of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material: (i) fixed-rate
financial assets, trade and other receivables
at effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof; and
(ii) variable-rate financial assets at current
effective interest rate;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)
Measurements of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

(i) 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

(if) lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. However,
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance will
be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M IRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_T-NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHEHEBMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (i) =MEEZREEBRE

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

The Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at
the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset. For
non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events: (i) significant financial difficulties of
the debtor; (i) a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; (iii) it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; (iv) significant changes
in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or (v) the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value
and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, other payables and accruals,
amount due to a director and lease liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS
9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting

date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC
government, the Group participates in a local
municipal government retirement benefit scheme
(the “Retirement Scheme”), whereby the subsidiaries
of the Company in the PRC are required to
contribute certain percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees to the Retirement Scheme to
fund their retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the
PRC. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the Retirement Scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the Retirement Scheme.
Contributions under the Retirement Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as incurred. There are no
provisions under the Retirement Scheme whereby
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce future
contributions.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all employees in Hong Kong
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_F-AE+-A=+—AILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Grants from the government are recognised at their

114

fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in profit
or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate and
are presented separately from the costs.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Related parties
A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

)

(ii)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Related parties (Continued)

(Continued)

(0)

(vi)

(vii)

(il

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(i

(ii)

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.

2.22 Segment reporting
The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components
and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors are determined following the Group’s major

operations.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(@)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRS - effective

1 January 2019

HKFRS 16
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Leases
Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Plan Amendment, Curtailment

or Settlement

Long term Interest in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKFRS 3,
Business Combination

Amendments to HKFRS 11,
Joint Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 12,

Income Taxes

Amendments to HKAS 23,

Borrowing Costs
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRS - effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 16 Leases

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,
primarily for accounting for lessees. It replaces
HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17”), HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease (“HK(IFRIC)-Int 4”), HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. From
a lessee’s perspective, almost all leases
are recognised in the statement of financial
position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, with the narrow exception to this
principle for leases which the underlying assets
are of low-value or are determined as short-
term leases. From a lessor’s perspective,
the accounting treatment is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. For details of
HKFRS 16 regarding its new definition of a
lease, its impact on the Group’s accounting
policies and the transition method adopted by
the Group as allowed under HKFRS 16, please
refer to section (i) to (v) of this note.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(@)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRS - effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
(Continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as
from 1 January 2019. The Group has elected
to use the modified retrospective approach.
The right-of-use asset is recognised at the
date of initial application (1 January 2019) at
an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position immediately before the date of initial
application. Comparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS 17.

The following tables summarised the impact
of transition to HKFRS 16 on consolidated
statement of financial position as of 31
December 2018 to that of 1 January 2019 as
follows (increase/(decrease)):
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RMB’000

AREF 5T

Consolidated statement of financial

R-B-hF-A—-AH

position as at 1 January 2019 FREMBRRE
Right-of-use assets TREEE 511,371
Prepaid land lease T e (12,401)
Deposits paid, prepayments and BffEe  BAFRER

other receivables H Ath pE U IR (644)
Deposits received, other payables BURIES - EMEMNTRER

and accruals R &R (17,112)
Lease liabilities HEBE 515,438
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(@)

120

(i)

3. BRMHMIMEMBITERMBER

%ﬁ,ﬁﬂ (%E)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRS - effective (@) TR RETEBHY
1 January 2019 (Continued) BRELEN -2 —-NF
—B—BEME)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BBV KRS EAF165FEE
(%)
Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (i) FRANE BB T 3R 52 Bl
(Continued) F165Emg Z (&)
The following reconciliation explains how LATHERIMLN _-Z
the operating lease commitments disclosed —N\E+ZA=+—8H
applying HKAS 17 at the end of 31 December RREEAEBGTE
2018 could be reconciled to the lease liabilities RIS 7R R R AL & AR
at the date of initial application recognised EAREER_-_ZT—NF
in the consolidated statement of financial — A — BWERA Bk
position as at 1 January 2019: R FTHER R BN E R
RHMEEEENHE
P
RMB’000
ARET T
Reconciliation of operating lease KEHEREHEEEAE
commitment to lease liabilities WER
Operating lease commitment as of R-E—N\F+=—_A=+—H
31 December 2018 A E TR E AR 545,277
Less: short term leases for which B BN ZE-NF+ZA
lease terms end within —+—HA#&%RZ
31 December 2019 MEHE (2,585)
Less: leases of low-value assets B REEEEME S
Add: leases included in extension option il : NEEZR B IBIETE &
which the Group considers ITERERIERIERE
reasonably certain to exercise FreglE 223,708
Less: future interest expenses o RRF B (250,962)
Total lease liabilities as of 1 January 2019 R=—ZE—HNFE—HA—HZ
BREAE 515,438
The weighted average lessee’s incremental MR _T—hhF—H—
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities AR BB R R AER

recognised in the statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2019 is 8.83%.

Represents the balance less than RMB1,000
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRS - effective

1 January 2019 (Continued)

(@)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i)

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. A contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time when the customer, throughout
the period of use, has both: (a) the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset and
(b) the right to direct the use of the identified
asset.

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, a lessee shall
allocate the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components, unless
the lessee apply the practical expedient
which allows the lessee to elect, by class of
underlying asset, not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and account for all
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(ii)

Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify
a lease as an operating lease or a finance
lease based on the extent to which risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a lease
asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. If a lease
is determined as an operating lease, the lessee
would recognise the lease payments under
the operating lease as an expense over the
lease term. The asset under the lease would
not be recognised in the statement of financial
position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of
they are operating leases or finance leases)
are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but HKFRS 16 provides
accounting policy choices for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are
short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group
has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months.
The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability at the date of adoption of
HKFRS 16, i.e. 1 January 2019.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRS - effective

1 January 2019 (Continued)

(@)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(iii)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures
the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liability.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRS - effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(iii)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

For the leasehold land and buildings that were
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose
would continue to be accounted for under
HKAS 40 and would be carried at fair value.
For leasehold land and buildings which is held
for own use would continue to be accounted
for under HKAS 16 and would be carried
at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The adoption
of HKFRS 16 therefore does not have any
significant impact on these right-of-use assets.
Other than the above right-of-use assets, the
Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises it judgement and determines that
it is a separate class of asset apart from the
leasehold land and buildings which is held for
own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(ii)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments shall be discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group shall
use the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use
the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease
payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a
lessee shall measure the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change
in the in substance fixed lease payments or
a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(v)

(v)

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment
property to a number of tenants. As the
accounting under HKFRS 16 for a lessor is
substantially unchanged from the requirements
under HKAS 17, the adoption of HKFRS 16
does not have significant impact on these
financial statements.

Under HKFRS 16, when the Group acts as an
intermediate lessor in a sublease arrangement,
the Group is required to classify the sublease
as a finance lease or an operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease, instead of by reference to
the underlying asset. The adoption of HKFRS
16 does not have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements in this regard.

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied
HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach where the right-of-use asset is
recognised at the date of initial recognition as
an amount equal to the lease liability, using
the lessee’s prevailing incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application (1 January
2019), adjusted for any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease that
were recognised in the statement of financial
position immediately before the date of initial
application (1 January 2019). The comparative
information presented in 2018 has not been
restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations as
allowed by the transition provision in HKFRS
16.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRS - effective

1 January 2019 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

v)

Transition (Continued)

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities
at the date of 1 January 2019 for leases
previously classified as operating leases
applying HKAS 17 and measured those lease
liabilities at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all the
right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019 for
leases previously classified operating leases
under HKAS 17. The Group chooses, on a
lease-by-lease basis, to measure that right-
of-use asset at an amount equal to the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the statement of financial
position immediately before the date of initial
application.

The Group has also applied the following
practical expedients: (i) applied the exemption
of not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with term that will
end within 12 months of the date of initial
application (1 January 2019) and accounted
for those leases as short-term leases; and (ii)
used hindsight in determining the lease terms
if the contracts contain options to extend or
terminate the leases.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS 3. BRAFITILETERAMIER
(Continued) HER| (&)

128

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(v) Transition (Continued)

In addition, the Group has also applied the
practical expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16
is applied to all of the Group’s lease contracts
that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 and (i)
not to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a lease
under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
The entity shall also assume the tax authority will
examine amounts that it has a right to examine and
have full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If the entity determines
it is probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, then
the uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected
using either the “most likely amount” or the “expected
value” approach, whichever better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(@)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRS - effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
— instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 19 - Plan Amendments,
Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment,
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a
company should use updated actuarial assumptions
to determine its current service cost and net interest
for the period. Additionally, the effect of the asset
ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or
loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with
separately in other comprehensive income.

Amendments to HKAS 28 - Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to
long-term interests (“LTI”) in associates or joint
ventures which form part of the net investment
in the associates or joint ventures and stipulates
that HKFRS 9 is applied to these LTI before the
impairment losses guidance within HKAS 28.
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130

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(@)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRS - effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which
clarifies that when a joint operator of a business
obtains control over a joint operation, this is a
business combination achieved in stages and the
previously held equity interest should therefore be
remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 11
which clarify that when a party that participates in, but
does not have joint control of, a joint operation which
is a business and subsequently obtains joint control of
the joint operation, the previously held equity interest
should not be remeasured to its acquisition date fair
value.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS 3. AT RIETERAMIER
(Continued) HEA|

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12 which
clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
are recognised consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, either in profit
or loss, other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23 which
clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to obtain
a qualifying asset which remains outstanding after
the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended
use or sale would become part of the funds an entity
borrows generally and therefore included in the
general pool.

Except for the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases as described above, the application of the
new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
period has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
the consolidated financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(b)

Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

New/revised HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRS, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Definition of a business'

Definition of material’

Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

Insurance Contracts?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application
of the amendments of the amendments continue to be
permitted.
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Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Definition of a
business

The amendments clarify that a business must include,
as a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs, together with providing extensive
guidance on what is meant by a “substantive
process”. Additionally, the amendments remove
the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes
and continuing to produce outputs, whilst narrowing
the definition of “outputs” and a “business” to
focus on returns from selling goods and services
to customers, rather than on cost reductions. An
optional concentration test has also been added
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 - Definition
of material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into
the definition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from
potential effects of the uncertainties caused by
interest rate benchmark reform. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single principle-
based standard for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts
in the financial statements of the issuers of those
contracts.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next year are discussed

below:

The assessment of the going concern assumption involves
making a judgement by the Directors, at a particular point of
the time, about the future outcome of events or conditions
which are inherently uncertain. The Directors consider that
the Group have the capability to continue as a going concern
and the going concern assumption is set out in Note 2.1(b).

Application of various accounting principles related to the
measurement and recognition of revenue requires the Group
to make judgements and estimates. Specifically, significant
judgments include determining whether the Group is acting
as the principal in a transaction. The Group is a principal in
a transaction if the Group obtains control of the products
sold or services provided before they are transferred to
customers. If control is unclear, when the Group is primarily
obligated in a transaction, is subject to inventory risk, has
latitude in establishing prices and selecting suppliers, or has
several but not all of these indicators, the Group records
revenues on a gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records the
net amount earned as commissions from products sold.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Depreciation

The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets with finite useful lives in accordance
with the accounting polices stated in notes 2.5 and 2.8
respectively. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’
estimates of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Inventory valuation

Inventory is valued using the cost method, which values
inventory at the lower of the actual cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method. The estimated net realisable value is generally the
merchandise selling price less selling expenses. The Group
reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
merchandise and use markdowns to clear merchandise.
Inventory value is reduced when the decision to markdown
below cost is made.

Estimated amount of customers’ unexercised
rights

Determining the breakage amount requires an estimation of
the ratio and proportion to the pattern of rights exercised
by the customer. The Group recognises the amount by
reference to the ratio derived from historical information that
represents proportion of the award points under customer
loyalty program and prepaid gift cards granted and sold
to the customers by the Group but not yet utilised by the
customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

In determining the lease term, the management considers
all the facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise
a termination option. Extension option (or periods after
termination options) are only included in the lease term
if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not

terminated).

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually
exercised or not exercised or the Group becomes
obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of
reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant change
in circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment,
and that is within the control of the lessee. At the beginning
of 2019, the Group was reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options of some leases, or not to exercise the
termination options of some leases and included those future
lease payments in lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.

Management estimates the amount of loss allowance
for ECLs on financial assets at amortised cost based on
the credit risk of the respective financial instrument. The
loss allowance amount is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration
of expected future credit loss of the respective financial
instrument. The assessment of the credit risk of the
respective financial instrument involves high degrees of
estimation and uncertainty about future economic conditions
which have an adverse effect on debtors’ business, debtors’
creditworthiness, the payment delinquency or default in
interest or principal payments. When the actual future cash
flows are less than expected or more than expected, a
material impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment

loss may arise, accordingly.
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138

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision of income tax and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current tax and deferred tax
provisions in periods in which such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax expense in the periods
in which such estimate is changed. The outcome of their
actual utilisation may be different.

The recognition of deferred tax liabilities requires assessment
of the temporary differences which arise as a consequence
of different accounting and tax treatments. These temporary
differences result in deferred tax liabilities are included
within the statement of financial position. Deferred tax
liabilities are measured using substantially enacted tax rates
expected to apply when the temporary differences reverse.
Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised where it is more
likely than not that the liabilities will not be realised in the
future. This evaluation requires judgements to be made
including the forecast of future taxable income. Recognition
therefore, involves management’s judgement regarding the
future financial performance of the particular legal entity in
which the deferred tax liabilities have been recognised and
interpretation of country specific tax law and the likelihood
of settlement. However, the actual tax liabilities could differ
from the provision and in such event the Group would be
required to make an adjustment in a subsequent period
which could have a material impact on the Group’s income
statement.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the
Group’s investment properties has been measured based
on the tax consequences of recovering the carrying amounts

entirely through use.

The Group measures investment properties at fair value.
Certain assets included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements also require disclosure of fair value. Significant
estimation and judgement are required to determine the fair

value.

The fair value measurement utilises market observable inputs
and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair
value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation

technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

° Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

° Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from

market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items

between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

For more information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the investment properties, please refer to

note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible asset are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining whether
an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

On adoption of HKFRS 8 Operating Segments, the Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and review of these components’ performance. There are
two (2018: three) business components/operating segments
in the internal reporting to the executive directors, which
are operation and management of retail stores and other
related businesses and provision of financing services (2018:
operation and management of retail stores and other related
businesses, food and catering and provision of financing
services).
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5. Z7EEHGHE)

Continuing operations
HERERK

Operation and
management of

retail stores Provision
and other related of financing
businesses services Consolidated
TEREBRSTERER
HitigmER RUtemRE aft
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z-NF
+ZA=+-ALEE
Revenue from external customers HIEERA 638,441 6,888 645,329
Inter-segment revenue AERWA S = =
Reportable segment revenue BEE Vi-LE: 638,441 6,888 645,329
Revenue recognition BARBR
Timing of revenue recognition RIEF BN RS REEA £ 155
under HKFRS 15 RN 2 B
- At a point in time -REEHE 432,804 = 432,804
- Over time -BEREEY 78,540 - 78,540
From other sources REEMBRR 127,097 6,888 133,985
638,441 6,888 645,329
Segment results PEEE (49,861) 6,166 (43,695)
Unallocated corporate income AOREERA 4
Unallocated corporate expenses AORCERT (6,080)
Loss before income tax BREEHAIER (49,771)
Income tax expense FEHEY (2,571)
Loss for the year FRER (52,342)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Other segment information
Interest income
Additions to non-current assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Written off of property,
plant and equipment
Obsolete inventories written off
Increase in fair value of
investment properties

BE-E-NF
TZAZ+-RLEE

Rt p REH
MBKA
FRPEERE

Bl AERH
fRREEENE

n%  BELRENE

HENE  HERREBR
VERN BT €

REFEMH
REMELFEEM

and other related

5. Z7EEHGH)

Continuing operations

BELERR

Operation and
management of

Provision
of financing
services

retail stores

businesses

REREETEER R

LS
RMB’000

ARBTR

SRERH
RMB’000
ARWTR

(4,079) (16)
366,451 -
425 81
95,533 -
45,702 23
35 -

1,336 -

(800) -

Consolidated

&t
RMB’000
ARBTR

(4,095)
366,451
506
95,533
45,725
35

1,336
84

(800)
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2019

R=Z-hE+-A=t-H

5. Z7EEHGHE)

Operation and
management of
retail stores

and other related
businesses
REREETEER
HiBEER
RMB’000
ARBTR

Provision
of financing

services Consolidated

&
SRERS

RMB’000
ARBT R

i
RMB’000
AR¥TR

Reportable segment assets 2RHBEE 1,451,705 50,516 1,502,221
Tax recoverable Bk 57
Other unallocated corporate assets ~ HiiR DR EEE 3,301
Total assets BEE 1,505,579
Reportable segment liabilities 2RNEaR 941,651 66 941,717
Provision for taxation HERE 3,723
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEEE 24,131
Other unallocated corporate liabilities  E ik HE A L£EE 2,127
Total liabilities #BERE 971,698
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZ-Z-\EtZR=1-H
LEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operation and
management
of retall
stores and
other related
businesses

Continuing operations

Provision of
financing
services

it
RMB'000

BER (&)

inued operation

Food and
catering

Inter-
segment
glimination

RMB' 000

Consolidated

Apt
=l

RMB'000
ARETT

Revenue from external customers SNEREIRA 704207 6,109 710,396 7902 - 718,298
Inter-Segment revenue HERBA 448 = 448 = (448) -
Reportable segment revenue T2HEhE 704,675 6,109 710,784 7.902 448) 718,238
Revenue recognition BB
Timing of revenue recognition REBRSHREENZ 58
under HKFRS 15 EIAZER

- Atapoint in tine -RERRE 494219 - 494,219 7902 = 502,121

- Over time -fEEHER 101,761 - 101,761 = = 101,761
From other sources RELHRR 108,247 6,109 114356 = = 114,356

704,227 6,109 710,336 7,902 - 718,238

Segment results PEEE 35,344 4,967 40,311 734 - 41045
Other unallocated corporate income EANRAZRA 1
Other unallocated corporate expenses HpRIRAERT (6,758)
Profit before income tax BEEHRET 34,288
Income tax expense i3 b (9,085)
Profit for the year Eriai 25,203
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018

Other segment information
Interest income

Additions to non-current assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of prepaid land lease
Written off of an intangible asset

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Obsolete inventories written-off

Inventories loss

Impairment loss on other receivable
Increase in fair value of investment properties

BEZ5-N\E+ZA=1-H

ILEE

A BEM

KA

FRYEERE
ERAERS

B THe%H

B BENHE

hz  BERREAE
HEn%  BERREER

REGEHH
FEBR

A RUGRRE
RENFATEEM

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Operation and
management
of retall

stores and
other related
husinesses

L4 3
RMB'000
AERTT

(4,298)
68,769
115
%1

41,021

706
127
122
1,828
(600)

5. Z7EEHGHE)

Continuing operations

Provision of
financing
services

e
%
RMB'000

ABBFR

@
146

bt
RMB'000
ARETR

(4,306)
68,915
115
261

41,050

706
127
122
1,828
(600)

Discontinued

Food and
catering

RMB'000
AEBFT

7,363
1,048

1,399
2,901

Consolidated

A
RMB'000
AEHFR

(4,308)
76,278
1,663
261
1,399
43,951

706
127
122
1,828
(500)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

At 31 December 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2EERR)

Operation and
management of
retail stores

and other related
businesses

e RER
ZEER Rt

Hin %% ER%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT

Provision
of financing
services

R-F-N\F+-A=1-H

Consolidated

abf
RMB'000
NS

Reportable segment assets AEHRPBEEE 887,552 55,784 943,336
Unallocated corporate assets APMEEEE 4,416
Total assets MEE 947,752
Reportable segment liabilities ERHBAE 304,153 494 304,647
Provision for taxation TRIE RS 11,961
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 23,931
Other unallocated corporate HipkpRhEERE

liabilities 1,485
Total liabilities wes 342,024

The PRC is the country of domicile of the Group. The country
of domicile is determined by referring to the country which
the Group regards as its home country, has the majority of
operations and centre of management.

No separate analysis of segment information by geographical
segment is presented as the Group’s revenue and non-
current assets are principally attributable to a single
geographical region, which is the PRC.

Information about a major customer

There was no single customer that contributed to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6. W A R HAih AR & U A
(@ Revenue (@ WA

The Group is principally engaged in operation and REFBFEEKAKENLER
maqagement of retaill 'stores gnd cher reI.ated TR A AR TS IR
businesses ar_wd prowsmn of fmanm,ng services. SRR WA(TARER
reprosents inveiced value of goods sold, net of cEam) EEHELTY
value added tax and after allowances for returns and ;ﬁﬁ%; %Zjﬁg)\ii?ﬁ
discounts, commissions from concessionaire sales,

rental income and interest income from financing SRR PTE £ RA B2 RA
services. Revenue recognised during the year is as LREE - FAERHEAN

follows: N

Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue from Contracts EBMBEREEAE155
with Customers within the HEEAZEFSHHKA

scope of HKFRS 15:

Sales of goods HEE M 432,804 494,219
Commissions from EEHEMSAS
concessionaire sales 78,540 101,761
511,344 595,980
Revenue from other sources: REEMIRHAWA :
Rental income from WEMENRS WA
investment properties 9,528 10,081
Rental income from sub-leasing # 8 /E4# 2895 2 WA
of shop premises 64,629 58,428
Rental income from sub-leasing # AR B ENFH S WA
of shopping malls 52,940 39,738
Interest income from KEAE RS2 FBEWA
financing services 6,888 6,109
133,985 114,356
645,329 710,336
Discontinued operation ERIEEEEK
Revenue from Contracts BEERMEHREERE155
with Customers within the HEAZEFAHHWA :
scope of HKFRS 15:
Sales of food and catering HERY NEMR - 7,902
645,329 718,238
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

(Continued)
(@) Revenue (Continued)

The following table provides information about trade
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with

customers.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

6.

WAREEE WA (R)

(@) A ()
TRIEHABEREESAHN
BWESEZRANAEE
X o

2019 2018
—®-nE T \F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE  ARMTE

Trade receivables
Contract liabilities (Note 23 (i))

FEUW B F R

aHaAEME23 ()

4,323 373
20,242 23,619

(b)  Other operating income

An analysis of the Group’s other operating income is

as follows:

(b) HAKEEWA
REBEMLEWAZ DT
T~

2019 2018
—®-hE —TN\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBETT

Continuing operations BEKSEER
Interest income FEUWA 4,099 4,307
Net exchange gain PE 5 W s F 58 419 279
Government grants (Note) BT e Bl (5T 2,608 6,052
Administration and THRERBRA
management fee income 46,580 45,622
Others Hith 11,997 15,249
65,703 71,509
Discontinued operation BRIEEEEK
Interest income REYA S 2
Others Hi - 5
- 7
65,703 71,516
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REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

(Continued)
(b) Other operating income (Continued)
Note:

Various local government grants have been granted to subsidiaries
of the Group during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019.
The amounts mainly represented unconditional cash subsidies from
government for subsidising enterprises as an encouragement for
the contribution in specific industry in the region. There were no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching to these government
grants.

FINANCE COSTS

6. WARHMEEWA ()

(b) HLEWAGE)
B -

BER-_ZF-NAFE+-A=+—HLt
FREANEE B R F T BT %
FTZEMY 2RI BRBTAE
B MR HOBRGERESMHAN - X
BEZMEEETENEM c ZER
R ENERERGEIKARE
I o

7. ®ERK

2019 2018
—g-hE —F\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T AREBTT

Interest on lease liabilities HEEENE

51,750 =

FERARRRERAT —T-NFFH 149



8.

150

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. PBREISHiA (BB

(@ (Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at (@ PBRETIEBLA

after charging/(crediting): Tb RABR (5
B

/\/\\ 2

518) /& A
TA) T A%

—B-N\fF

RMB’000
AREFIT

Continuing operations BERSEEK
Cost of inventories sold ERARTHNEEFERAN

recognised as expense 354,233 410,424
Auditor’s remuneration BRTENE 1,235 1,602
Depreciation of property, M - BB RERETE(HE12)

plant and equipment (Note 12) 45,725 41,050
Amortisation of prepaid land B LS H 8 (HE14)

lease (Note 14) S 261
Depreciation of right-of-use CRAREEENE :

assets:

- Properties leased for —BREEWE(MF13)

own use (Note 13) 95,272 -
— Leasehold land for —BREE M (HFE13)
own use (Note 13) 261 S
Amortisation of intangible EREEBHE(KE16)

assets (Note 16) 506 115
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEKZESE

plant and equipment 35 706
Operating lease rentals in BIEBRASHERE17H

respect of land and T REFHLEHERS

buildings under HKAS 17 S 108,612
Short term lease expense RHRAEMY (ME13)

(Note 13) 3,806 _
Low value lease expense KEEHRERAT (KE13)

(Note 13) 37 -
Obsolete inventories written-off  FRE 77 & i £ 84 127
Inventories loss FEEE - 122
Impairment loss on other H YR IERE (BT REG)

receivables (Note (i) S 1,828
Written-off of property, M - BB &R

plant and equipment (FF3EG)) (HI7E12)

(Note (i) (Note 12) 1,336 S
Staff costs, including directors’  BIRA - BEEEME

emoluments (Note 28(a)) (Pfif3E28(a))

Salaries and other benefits %?% K E A7 92,357 86,227

Contributions to retirement RN FH B

schemes 14,628 10,360
106,985 96,587
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8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
(Continued)
(@) (Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at (a)
after charging/(crediting): (Continued)

%

BRETBBLAT (B 1]), 5 R (8)

BRPTEH A (BE) E R
&M, (Gt A) THI%

HEH ()

2019
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Net exchange gain g (419) (279)
Rental income from investment &M S KA
properties (9,528) (10,081)
Income from subleasing of HIEEREEERA
right-of-use assets
- Base rents —HAHEE (114,097) (94,712)
- Contingent rents (Note (ii)) e A E({)) (3,472) (3,454)
(117,569) (98,166)
Total gross rental income BLHEDSUWA (127,097) (108,247)
Less: Direct operating expenses & : I ERBEHE S KR AK
arising from investment REVFEENEELERSE
properties that generated rental
income during the year 2,058 2,058
Less: Outgoings of subleasing W D REREEERY
of right-of-use assets 16,261 14,801
Net rental income SFHRSWBA (108,778) (91,388)
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(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8.

(Continued)

(@) (Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at (a)
after charging/(crediting): (Continued)

BRATSBLAT (BE), 8 (&)

BRPTEH A (BE) ER
T &R (G A) T H&

HEH ()

2019 2018
—E—hEF - )N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Discontinued operation BARIEREER
Cost of inventories sold REATHEERTERA
recognised as expense - 3,366
Auditor's remuneration HATA & - 15
Depreciation of property, VI - BB REETE
plant and equipment - 2,901
Amortisation of | EEEHE
intangible assets S 1,548
Operating lease rentals in REEEFERE175R
respect of land and T REFH
buildings under HKAS 17 ERERS S 2,115
Written-off of | B EM S
an intangible asset - 1,399
Staff costs, including directors’ B TIKA @ BIEEEHME
emoluments (Note 28(a)) (Bi3E28(a))
Salaries and other benefits e MEMEH] = 5,168
Contributions to retirement RIRE I
schemes S 449
- 5,617

Notes:

GEX

(i) Impairment loss on other receivables and written-off of (i)
property, plant and equipment had been included in other

operating expenses.

(ii) Contingent rents are calculated based on a percentage (ii)
of the relevant sales of the tenants pursuant to the rental

agreements.
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- Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NF+-A=+—HItFE

8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BREFSH AT (B518) aF (&)
(Continued)
(b) Discontinued operation in prior year (b) EFCRIELEER

On 30 June 2018, the Group completed its disposal
of the entire interests in a subsidiary, Shenzhen
Qianhai Baijiahua Beverage Management Limited
(“Baijiahua Beverage”) which was principally engaged
in food and catering to an independent third party.

RZFE-N\FARA=TH &
KEERHEE —KKE AR
Z 2R — R RE B E
FEREEARLOA)([BEE
BRDGE—RBUE=T] - &
M AR EREEERETR -

1 January to
30 June 2018

—E-)N\F
—H—H=
~NA=+H
RMB’000
ARETIT
Revenue WA 6(a) 7,902
Cost of inventories sold EEFEERAR (3,366)
4,536
Other operating income H g A 6(b) 7
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko SHBAR (10,976)
Administrative expenses TEFEX (3,715)
Other operating expenses Hmaee s (1,459)
Loss before income tax KRETS TR & 18 8(a) (11,607)
Income tax expense Frig i 9 -
Loss after tax from discontinued BRI EER 2 BRTEER
operation (11,607)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB ARz s 33 12,341
Profit from discontinued operation BRI EER 2 FREF
for the year 734
Operating cash flows EEIRER 7,418
Investing cash flows wEBREM (8,057)
Total cash flows e mEBEE (639)

BEFEKNELERARNEENREE
BREEN I T MR ESSKE ©

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of
the Baijiahua Beverage at the date of disposal are
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.

HEFBEEEREEGTFNOARE
12,341,0007T © BN & P18 5I8R =
MEAREEAEFE -

A profit of approximately RMB12,341,000 arose
from the disposal of Baijiahua Beverage, being the
proceeds of disposal less the carrying amount of the
subsidiary’s net liabilities.
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INCOME TAX RSBt

2019 2018
—B-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ET T

Current income tax BNERFTIS B
- PRC enterprise income tax — R EPEMESH 2,371 4,540
- PRC withholding income tax — R BTEIFTEHE - 3,100
2,371 7,640
Deferred tax (Note 25) BEIEFRIE (M 5E25) 200 1,445
2,571 9,085

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands
during the year (2018: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong
for the year (2018: Nil).

For a subsidiary of the Group in Guangxi, its PRC Enterprise
Income Tax has been provided at the preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% (2018: 15%) for the year pursuant
to the privilege under the China’s Western Development
Program.

Other subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC were
mainly subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of
25% (2018: 25%) for the year under the income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.
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9. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

(Loss)/profit before income tax

9. FEHi(H)

BRPTS AT (B1R),m T

2019

—B-hF

RMB’000
AR®TT

WERRERGFENMEHA EEt
(E18),amF 2 $5E

2018
—T-N\F
RMB’000
AREF

- From continuing operations —REFBREEY (49,771) 33,554
- From discontinued operation —REERILEEER

(Note 8(b)) (FI=E8(b)) S (11,607)

(49,771) 21,947

Tax on (loss)/profit before income tax, RFrSFAT(EE), % F 8

calculated at the rates applicable BIE ARG EAER

to (loss)/profit in the tax jurisdictions  (FE518) i 38 B Y T 2

concerned e (13,007) 5,052
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A 7% 5 5% #h 8 74 o2 22 11,646 8,138
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBBANTR BT E (4,047) (7,701)
Utilisation of tax losses previously (F LR R ERN B EE

not recognised (930) (677)
Effect of withholding income tax on N & E B B A B ]

distributable profits of the Group’s K F E TR FTIS R

PRC subsidiaries - S 3,400
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised  RIERTIB BB TG E 8,909 773
Income tax expense TS X 2,571 9,085

FERRERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

10. DIVIDENDS 10. KA
(a) Dividends attributable to the year (@) AEEEMLRKRE

2019 2018
—E—hE —E—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Proposed final dividend for the BHz2—_T—hF+=A

year ended 31 December 2019 = t+—HIEFEEIRE

of RMB Nil (2018: RMB1.88 AR SR TR

cents) per ordinary share ARMERE(ZF— \F :

AR¥1.885)) - 19,505
The final dividend proposed after the reporting date R B HR1& R A R HARR B
has not been recognised as a liability at the respective BERABHEMEBHENE
reporting date, but reflected as an appropriation of B MERBAZFENRE
retained profits for that year. il ol Tue
(b) Dividend attributable to the previous year, b)) FEARAHAERKMSHLEEE

approved and paid during the year ERERE

2019 2018
—B-hF —F-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Final dividend in respect of the HEFEHRPBREEFEK

previous year, of RMB1.88 LMk AR 1,885

cents (2018: RMB1.91 cents) (ZE—N\F : AR

per ordinary share 1.91%)
- Approved during the year —FRLE 19,505 19,816
— Paid during the year — FRRN (19,505) (19,816)
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11.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 1. SR(EE) 2R
()  Continuing and discontinued operations (i) FERCRIEREEK

(ii)

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/
earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on following data:

FEARRHEA ARGERE
AR EE(ER) BFN - DR
BATHIESE

(Loss)/earnings (&8)/ 87
(Loss)/earnings for the purposes R ESREARETE

of basic and diluted (loss)/ (B8),/BFH(ESR)/ BF

earnings per share (RMB’000) (AREFT) (52,342) 25,203
Number of shares BRAEE
Weighted average number of LR NETI9E

ordinary shares 1,037,500,002 1,037,500,002
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings BREAREE(BHR),/

per share (RMB cents) BI(ARES) (5.05) 2.43

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share equals to basic
(loss)/earnings per share, as there were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares issued during the years ended

31 December 2018 and 2019.

Continuing operations

BREE(B8) BRFBESER
BREAXN(EBE) /BT - RE
BEE_ZT-)\EEZZE—N
F+-A=Z+—BIEFE I
mEMEBMEEH 2 LB -

(i) FELEXEK

2019
—E-AEF

2018
—B-N\F
RMB’000
ARMEF 5T

RMB’000
AR®TT

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners A FHH AEIEEE

of the Company for the year (E518),/& F (52,342) 25,208
Less: Profit from discontinued B BRIEREEE Y
operation for the year F N F S (734)
(52,342) 24,469
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings (B KL ¥ KN EFRER
per share from continuing REE(E8B), /BT
operations (RMB cents) (AR%5) (5.05) 2.36
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(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 11. SR (#8) BF (&)
BRI REEK

(iii) Discontinued operation (iii)

Profit attributable to owners of the KARES AEM

2019
—B-NEF

RMB’000
AR®TT

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARET T

Company for the year FERF S 734
Basic and diluted earnings per share B 4% |F 44 28T

from discontinued operation EARREERT

(RMB cents) (AEES) = 0.07
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12,

M - BERRE

Motor Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold Plant and vehicles  fixtures and
buildings  Improvements machinery and tools Uipment Total
figEF WERE  BRAEE  [ERIA By ok
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEEFT  ARETR  ARET
At1 January 2018 RZE-\§-5-A
Cost KA 21,357 404,537 21,461 10,836 110,529 568,720
Accumulated depreciation 2:thE (1,412) (272,025) (17,412) (8,447) (98,297) (397,599)
Net carying amount RERE 10045 132512 4,049 23%9 12232 171127
Yearended 31 December 2018 ~ HZE=ZF-N\F1=f
=t-HLEE
QOpening net carrying amount ENRmRE 19,945 132,612 4,049 2,389 12,232 171,127
Additions RE - 64,603 20 756 9,363 74,792
Disposals LE S S = (10) (811) (821)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 33 H&—FIMBAR(H333) - (14,699) - - w402 (19,101)
Depreciation it (05 (37.88) (669) (1070) 6023 [43951)
Closing net carrying amount EXRAFE 19,640 144,582 3,400 2,065 12,359 182,046
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NE+ZB=1-AER
1 January 2019 “E-nf-5-A
Cost KA 21,357 449,521 21,481 11,384 109,683 613,426
Accumulated depreciation it (1,717) (304,939) (18,081) (9,319) (97,324) (431,380)
Net carrying amount FEFE 19,640 144,582 3,400 2,065 12,359 182,046
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E-nETZA
=t-HLEE
QOpening net carrying amount ENEREE 19,640 144,582 3,400 2,065 12,359 182,046
Additions RE - 115,080 18 469 14,716 130,283
Disposals L& - - - (547) (107) (654)
Written off s - S (83) - (1,253) (1,336)
Depreciation & (B779  (36739) (443) (931) (383) (45725
Closing net carrying amount EXRARE 15,861 222,923 2,892 1,056 21,882 264,614
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+-B=1-A
Cost Ak 21,357 444,909 19,966 8,876 109,159 604,267
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (5,496) (221,986) (17,074) (7,820) (87,277) (339,653)
Net carrying amount FEFE 15,861 222,923 2,892 1,056 21,882 264,614
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) =
re IS IRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NE+-A=+—BHILEE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - BERZEE)
(Continued)
Depreciation charges incurred for the year from continuing FAROBEREEEFREENTEY
operations were recognised as “selling and distribution HERHERDHEAAIR [1THA
costs” and “administrative expenses” amounted to Y 1D RIER A AR B 45,135,0007T
approximately RMB45,135,000 (2018: RMB40,489,000) and —ZT—)\F : AR¥40,489,0007T)
RMB590,000 (2018: RMB561,000) respectively. M AR®590,000t(ZF—\F : A
R#561,0007T) °
Depreciation charges incurred for the year ended 31 BE_Z—\H&+_-_A=+—HI*F
December 2018 from discontinued operation were EORIEREEREANTERSD
recognised as “selling and distribution costs” and BRAETHERDHEAAN | & [1TEH
“administrative expenses” amounted to approximately Y1 &Y AEANRE2 870,000
RMB2,870,000 and RMB31,000 respectively. TR ARE31,0007T °
13. LEASES 13. #HE
HKFRS 16 was adopted from 1 January 2019 without EEMBREENF165E8 —Z—h
restatement of comparative figures. For an explanation of the F—A—HREH  BYESFINLER
transitional requirements that were applied as at 1 January Hg¥r BN _ZT—hLhE—HF—HE
2019, see Note 3(a)(v). The accounting policies applied AHBEEERENMRE  S28H
subsequent to the date of initial application, 1 January 2019, 3@V c AR BERERBE(Z
as disclosed in note 2.12(A). T-NEF—HA—R)ERERANZTH
R AMIEE2.12(A) KR EE -
(i) Properties leased for own use (i) BAEEWE
The Group entered into various lease agreements NEFEBTE=H REBAQ
for retail stores, shopping malls and employees’ A BRI mEEESESR
accommodation with independent third parties and AE(TEEEEE ) (G R
the related companies, namely Shenzhen Baijiahua ERERBHEEF L TIRZ
Group Company Limited (“BJH Group”), a company in RRGEEERER) REER
which Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, HE - SREEFE - BYH L
the spouse of Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun, have beneficial NMETEFBEITEZEEER
interests, and JH Real Estate. E
The leases with independent third parties have initial RZE—NhF+—A=1+—
period of non-cancellable leases between 1 and 15 B B#BBYE=-FMiIHEYZ
years as at 31 December 2019. A HENAPHRERNT1E
155F 2@ °
The leases with related companies, BJH Group and R-ZE—-NF+_A=+—
JH Real Estate, have initial period of non-cancellable B HEHEEHAR - BEEES
leases between 2 and 14 years as at 31 December BREEEMEMRIAECZT
2019. ARGEV P HERN 2514
fﬁZFEﬂ °
(i)  Leasehold land for own use (i) BAAELH
The Group is the registered owner of the leasehold AEBAHETHOERLER
land. The leasehold land will expire in 2066. Lump AN BELTHBER T, NNE
sum payment was made upfront to acquire the land. JEm > EUE T E TE R —
ST THIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

13. LEASES (Continued)
Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

13. HE(E)

EREEE
EREEELRRBEEERMNE DK
EFESITT -

31 December 1 January

2019 2019

=F-NEF —F-NF

t=A=+—H —A—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET ARET T

Properties leased for own use ERMAEYE 631,613 498,970
Leasehold land for own use BRAMEE L 12,140 12,401
643,753 511,371

Properties Leasehold
leased for land for
own use own use Total
BERHEEYX BAEELH At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMT T ARMET T
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HF—H 498,970 12,401 511,371
Additions NE 227,975 - 227,975
Disposals mE (60) - (60)
Depreciation e (95,272) (261) (95,533)
At 31 December 2019 N-_EBE—hIE
+=B=+—H 631,613 12,140 643,753
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE SRR MR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

13.

162

LEASES (Continued)

Lease liabilities

13. HE(&)

Properties

leased for

own use

BAREYE

RMB’000

AR¥ET T

At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—hhF—H—H 515,438

Additions NE 227,975

Disposals k= (61)

Interest expenses E=Na 51,750

Lease payments MER®K (113,267)

At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hE+=-HA=+—H 681,835
Future lease payments are due as follows: REAEMNROE B RAT :

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIEHEESH ME RE
31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 2019 2019
—®-AF —B-hE —B-hE
+=A=t-A +=A=t+-B t=A=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRE  ARMFR  ARETR

Not later than one year
Later than one year and

TER—F 124,578 48,738 75,840
BR—ERTERME

not later than two years 116,905 40,704 76,201

Later than two years and BERMERTERRF
not later than five years 319,305 99,867 219,438
More than 5 years HEE 370,905 60,549 310,356
931,693 249,858 681,835
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13. LEASES (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

13. HE(#E)
HEEBEUE)

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIEMEMNK ME HE
1 January 1 January 1 January

2019 2019

—E-NF —ENF ’
—HA—H —H—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBFT ARBTTT

Not later than one year TER—F 93,508 42,822 50,686
Later than one year and ER—FRTERRF
not later than two years 89,827 38,317 51,510
Later than two years and BRAMTRTERRF
not later than five years 219,887 90,443 129,444
More than 5 years RENE 363,178 79,380 283,798
766,400 250,962 515,438
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

13.

164

LEASES (Continued) 13.

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as:

AE ()

AREEMNKHREIFTET -

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-NF = JIF
T=A=+—-H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETTT

Current liabilities NN 75,840 50,686
Non-current liabilities ErFHaE 605,995 464,752
681,835 515,438

Short term lease expense EHAERX
Low value lease expense KEEHERX

2019
—E-hF

RMB’000
ARBT

3,806
37

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NF+-A=+—HItFE

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. #HE(E)
Operating leases - lessee KEHE-FAHEA
The total future minimum lease payments under non- RZE—-N\F+_A=1+—HIEET
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and buildings ARG T REFREEEREMNEB
payable to independent third parties at 31 December 2018 FoHMARKEREM AT
are as follows: T
2018
—E-)N\F
RMB’000
ARETTT
Not later than one year TER—F 59,085
Later than one year and not later than BR—F N TERWE
two years 35,817
Later than two years and not later than BRMFE R TNERRSE
five years 65,300
More than 5 years REE 54,809
215,011
The total future minimum lease payments under non- RZF—\F+ZA=+—A ' REK
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and buildings AAIREE £ B F R E M E AR R
payable to related companies, namely BJH Group and JH REMHEB AR REEREREE
Real Estate at 31 December 2018 are as follows: FiENSEREMFEmnT
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARBT T
Not later than one year TER—F 28,740
Later than one year and not later than BR—FRTNERME
two years 26,961
Later than two years and not later than BRAMERTERASE
five years 72,278
More than 5 years AFUE 202,287
330,266
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LEASES (Continued)

Operating leases - lessor

The Group sub-leases out a number of leasehold land and
buildings under operating leases. The total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
from independent third parties are as follows:

13.

HE (%)
HEHEE-HEA

AEERBEGEHESEETHESL
WRIBTF - REBETATRHEEEHEERE
WOB L = 77 MR R SR A B R YR

THAARENT -

2019
—E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Not later than one year TER—F 72,035 48,295
Later than one year and BR—FRTERME
not later than two years 68,174 42,882
Later than two years and BRAMTERTNER=ZF
not later than three years 57,591 33,392
Later than three years and BR=ZF R TNERETE
not later than four years 42,195 29,613
Later than four years and BRANFRTNERAT
not later than five years 27,866 21,101
Later than 5 years REEULE 76,434 58,945
344,295 234,228
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13.

LEASES (Continued)

Operating leases - lessor (Continued)

The total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases from related companies, namely
BJH Group and JH Real Estate are as follows:

13. #HE(HE)
KEEE - HBAAE)

REBTATHEEEHES - BEEBER
AAEEREREERBE 2 RRK

EAEERYGRIREERNT

2019

2018

—B-NEF —Z—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Not later than one year TER—F 3,993 3,817
Later than one year and BR—FRTERME
not later than two years 3,761 3,056
Later than two years and BAMTRTNER=ZF
not later than three years 3,872 3,061
Later than three years and BR=ZFRTERET
not later than four years 3,821 2,995
Later than four years and BANFRTNERAT
not later than five years 2,418 2,907
Later than 5 years REENULE 4,150 7,497
22,015 23,333
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14. PREPAID LAND LEASE

168

14. FEfS1#&

2019
—B-NEF

RMB’000
AR®TT

RMB’000
AR% T

At beginning of the year F4
Cost AR R 14,132 14,132
Accumulated amortisation R (1,731) (1,470)
Initial application of HKFRS 16 BREREEMBRE

ERIE165% (12,401) -
Net carrying amount BREFE - 12,662
Net carrying amount REFEE
At beginning of the year (Restated) & #](&&75I) - 12,662
Amortisation 30| = (261)
At end of the year FR - 12,401
At end of the year EXR
Cost B%N S 14,132
Accumulated amortisation RN = (1,731)
Net carrying amount RREDFE - 12,401
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NF+-A=+—HItFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWE
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
At beginning of the year E 4] 291,300 290,800
Increase in fair value of investment &4 ZE A E N
properties 800 500
At end of the year FR 292,100 291,300

The investment properties represent various leasehold land
and buildings located in the PRC held for generating rental
income and the leasehold land will expire in 2066.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2018 and 2019 were arrived at on the basis
of valuations carried out at the date by Chung Hin Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers not connected to the Group, who has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring
fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and
closing fair value balance is provided below:

Opening balance

FREH(EIBERE LR FE)

REYMEEREEHSBRATMHEN
REPEAELHEET  mEEL
HWEVHIR S —TRNEFEim °

AEEREMERZE—NER=Z
—NF+—A=+—HHAFE T}
ERFAITHERRARRZ B ETH
HEEH  EAEAEEBEBE Y
—HIBLAEBEREEMERMT WA
B EESEBEUMEZ #E ER
MOmERAE B o

BREMENAFELSEIBELREMER
FERE - FNRFERNQFEER
HERFIINT -

2019
e

2018
—T-)N\F

RMB’000
ARBTTT

RMB’000
ARET T

(level 3 recurring fair value) 291,300 290,800
Increase in fair value of WEWENTFEE N

investment properties 800 500
Closing balance FREH(EIWEHMATE)

(level 3 recurring fair value) 292,100 291,300
Change in unrealised gains forthe R+ A=+—BREEEE

year included in profit or loss for FFABGZNFARERIE

assets held at 31 December & 800 500
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15.

170

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REWXE(E)

Fair values of investment properties are determined using KEMENRFEEBERELIRE
the investment method on the basis of capitalisation of the MR (M A BERIAE B EE
net rental income derived from the existing tenancies with N)EAERSWAFKRIREEE
due allowance for the reversionary income potential. The E o A EFEEMESAEESKIE
fair value measurement is positively correlated to the market o Y E O ERE AR & B o
monthly rental rate and negatively correlated to property
yield.
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs
& B 5 1l BERBEBER2GAEHR
At 31 December 2019 Investment Market monthly rental rate taking RMB105 to
Investment properties method into account of individual factors RMB340
RZZE—-NF+-A=+—8 KE=X such as location, environment, age, (2018:
REME accessibility, floor, size. etc. (RMB/ RMB120 to
sQ.m) RMB340)

mEEAMEE RUE - RE & ARM106TE
B AEN - BE - R EEREA AR#3407T

R(ARE FHK) —E-N\F
AR¥120LE
AR¥3407T)
Capitalisation rate of 4% to 5%
reversionary income (2018: 4% to 5%)
EBEWANER L E 4% ZE5%
—E-N\F:
4%E5%)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during FER(EERNTI E (& E o
the years.
The fair value measurement is based on the above ANREEHENER LAYESIZER
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from ToER(BEERBRAER) -

their actual use.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1 January 2018

R=E2-N\E-H-H
AR

16. B EE

Computer
software

gt

RMB’000
/)\Erﬁg:‘:ﬁ

Franchise
(Note)

SRR (M)
RMB'000
ARBTT

Total

Foh
RMB’000
ARETT

Cost 1,150 11,500 12,650
Accumulated amortisation 2 BERRESR

and impairment loss (220) (6,061) (6,281)
Net carrying amount IREEE 930 5,439 6,369
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE_Z-N\f+-A=+-H

HFE

Opening net carrying amount FREFEE 930 5,439 6,369
Additions - externally acquired NE — NP URER 490 - 490
Amortisation By (115) (1,548) (1,663)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 33) & — N8 A & (Fi533) - (2,492) (2,492)
Written off s - (1,399) (1,399)
Closing net carrying amount FREMFE 1,305 - 1,305
At 31 December 2018 and R-E-NE+-A=+-HR

1 January 2019 “Z-nf¥-A-H
Cost B A 1,640 - 1,640
Accumulated amortisation and T BERAESR

impairment loss (335) - (335)
Net carrying amount IREFE 1,305 = 1,305
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-E-n&E+-B=+-H

HEE

Opening net carrying amount FREFE 1,305 - 1,305
Additions - externally acquired B —IMBUEE 4,171 - 4,171
Amortisation B (506) - (506)
Closing net carrying amount EREERE 4,970 - 4,970
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NF+=A=t-H
Cost B AR 5,811 - 5,811
Accumulated amortisation and AT ORI AR B

impairment loss (841) - (841)
Net carrying amount REEE 4,970 - 4,970

Note: BisE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, a franchise right amounting to
approximately RMB1,399,000 was written off due to the early termination
of the use of the franchise right with a corresponding licensor and the close
down of restaurants accordingly in prior year.

BE-T—/\F+-ASt—BLFE B
8 0 A R 1,399 0007T FIR 242 LL SRR
B AR 5 A T 4 R R
e
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17.

172

DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

ENEE AARARELE
WK

2019
—E-hEF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Rental deposits HEZRe 19,786 15,642
Payment in advance for WEEME - BB REREN
acquisition of property, TR RIE
plant and equipment 7,862 3,840
Other receivable H fth pE U 1B 3,800 3,800
31,448 23,282
Current assets REBEE
Deposits paid Bff%e 1,992 2,679
Prepayments SEERE /O] 6,620 8,311
Advances to suppliers A 4L JE R B 3R 1,090 252
Other receivables (Note) A Y ks (B aE) 42,253 41,845
51,955 53,087
Note: BisE -

Included in the balance was input value added tax (“VAT”) receivable of
approximately RMB33,001,000 (2018: RMB19,502,000) as at 31 December
2019. Input VAT arose when the Group purchases products from suppliers
and the input VAT can be deducted from output VAT on revenue.

Except for input VAT receivables which had no expiry date, all other
receivables were repayable either on demand or within one year.

The Directors consider that the fair values of other receivables (current
portion), except for input VAT receivables, which are expected to be recovered
within one year are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on their inception.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
deposits paid and other receivables are set out in note 35(jii).
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FEEEEREAEEAEESRBERTE
A WA RIRES R G SHIEEER R o

W 30 A FE R B R B U B TRIR E RSN - TR
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18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—ZREE QT z2EE

2019
—B-hE —Z-N\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFTT

Share of net liabilities EiHBERE
Goodwill kS
Less: Accumulated impairment losses &, : 2T H/EEE

(484) (484)
600 600
(116) (116)

Details of the associate are as follows:

Particulars of

& N RIFFBNT

Percentage of Principal
interest held by  activities
the Company and place
indirectly of operations
AARfEE FEXEK
FEREESL RENH

Place of incorporation/ paid-up
establishment and registered
Company name legal form of entity capital
AL LR B
NGRS HEAER BARFE
Shenzhen Egoos Mobile The PRC, RMB10,000,000
Internet Limited limited liability company
ANTHRLBEBHER HE FRETAF AE#10,000,0007C
BRAR

In the opinion of the Directors, the above associate is
immaterial to the Group.

The summarised financial information of the associate
is unavailable for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2019, and the Directors considered the impact of it
is immaterial in view of the insignificance of the carrying
amount of this associate.

30%  Operation and
management of online
sale in the PRC

30% RPBEFEEER
BEHE

EERA LABSAAHKEEY
TEA -

HE_Z—\FERZZF—-IF+=A
=+ —HLFEELIRESEE AR
HERME  BEERAZENUILE
BARZEEBELTEX  RHEPE
TEEK -
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RE SRR MR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

19.

20.

174

INVENTORIES AND CONSUMABLES

19.

FEKZ#Em

2019 2018

—E-hF —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Merchandise for resale HERD 24,951 50,289
Low value consumables EKESZED 3,185 2,287
28,136 52,576

TRADE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES

All of the Group’s sales are on cash basis except for trade
receivables from certain bulk sales of merchandise to
corporate customers, rental income receivables from tenants
and loan receivables from provision of financing services.
The credit terms offered to the customers from operation
and management of retail stores are generally for a period of
one to three months (2018: one to three months), while to
customers from financing services are repayable on demand
or one to seven months (2018: repayable on demand or one
to seven months).

As at 31 December 2019, included in trade receivables of
approximately RMB20,009,000 (2018: RMB13,274,000)
represented rental income receivables from tenants.

Trade receivables were non-interest-bearing. Loan
receivables from provision of financing services which bore
interest at fixed rates with effective interest rates ranging
from 12% to 15% (2018: 12% to 15%) per annum. The loan
receivables are secured and with recourse.
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20.
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TREBZEFPNEER —RARE
FEEL—EL@EA(ZFE-N\F:
BRERERESL—Z=EMEA) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

20. TRADE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

20. EREFERARER(E)

2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Trade receivables (Note (i) FEURE 5 BRF (ML) 24,332 13,647
Loan receivables (Note (ii) FEUE FR (B sEGi)) 46,477 47,212
70,809 60,859

Notes: st -

(i) The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on invoice
dates, is as follows:

0] AEEZREESREFZERTADN
BRECAMTANT -

2019

—E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETF T ARBET T
Within 30 days 30HA 22,320 12,399
31-60 days 31%E60H 973 488
61-180 days 61£180H 726 484
181-365 days 181%365H 313 276
24,332 13,647

(i) The aging analysis of the Group’s loan receivables is as follows:

(ii) AEBEEERHREDITAT -

2019 2018
—EB-hEF T—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T

Repayable on demand or within one year 1ZREBREEsk—FR

46,477 47,212

The Directors consider that the fair values of trade and loan
receivables which are expected to be recovered within one year are
not materially different from their carrying amounts because these
balances have short maturity periods on their inceptions.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising
from trade and loan receivables are set out in note 35(jii).

BEERR ANZSEBRRELERE
2B FEER —F R E e
WESERARERN A FEELRT
BEYEBERER -

FRASEEKEIERREREL

HEBEBRREERBNE —ZFB
BB FE35(iii) ©
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R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE—T

21.

176

—NEFZA=+—HIEFE

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

21.

REeRBTE

2019 2018

—B-hE — N\

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARETT

Cash at banks and in hand RITERFERE 69,169 161,400
Bank deposits maturing within R={EAREIBNRITHFR

three months 28,568 99,496

Cash and cash equivalents for the BEREXNBEENASEEY

purpose of statement of cash flows 97,737 260,896
Bank deposits maturing over R={A A& HRTIFR

three months 20,000 10,000

117,737 270,896

The Group had cash and bank balances denominated
in RMB of approximately RMB112,793,000 (2018:
RMB264,642,000) of which the remittance out of the PRC
was subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by
the PRC government.

The cash at banks bore interests at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Certain bank deposits bore interest
at floating rate with effective interest rate as at 31 December
2019 was 0.35% (2018: 0.35%) per annum. The other bank
deposits bore interest at fixed rates with effective interest
rates as at 31 December 2019 ranged from 1.65% to 2.1%
(2018: ranged from 1.35% to 3.2%) per annum. They had
maturities ranged from 6 month to 12 months (2018: ranged
from 3 month to 12 months) and were eligible for immediate
cancellation without receiving any interest for the last deposit
period.
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22.

TRADE PAYABLES

The credit terms granted by suppliers are generally for a
period of 30 to 60 days. The aging analysis of the trade
payables, based on invoice dates, is as follows:

22. ENEZERRX
HEREENEESH K AR30E60
B EAESERIREZEANER
DR =

2019

—B-hF

RMB’000

AR%ET T
Within 30 days 30HA 63,905 102,708
31-60 days 31260H 19,589 47,662
61-180 days 612180H 9,352 11,352
181-365 days 181£365H 2,118 2,898
Over 1 year —F LA 3,093 7,383
98,057 172,003

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts
of the Group’s trade payables are considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair values.

FIAREARES  Fit - AEEZ
ENESEFEAERIASEATE
ZRBHE -
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RE SRR MR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS 23. EHNEE BWiRSE - HittfE
RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES AND NRERESEHR
ACCRUALS

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Contract liabilities (Note (i) SHaEE>) 20,242 23,619
Deposits received B Wiz e 48,179 27,932
Other payables (Note (ii)) b S 208 (B 5 G)) 75,153 48,568
Accruals e & A 20,319 33,951
143,651 110,451
163,893 134,070
Notes: BiEE -
(i) Contract liabilities (i) aHEaRE
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Contract liabilities in relation to: EHBESR
Operation and management of retail SR ERTEEREMABREES
stores and other related businesses

- Customer loyalty programme —RBREREAXIFTE 8,167 7,259
- Prepaid gift cards —-ENERTF 12,075 16,360
20,242 23,619

178

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied as of each reporting period. The Group expects the

will be recognised as revenue when the award points in relation to
customer loyalty programme and prepaid gift cards are redeemed. BUA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB R AR B RE (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

23.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS
RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) Contract liabilities (Continued)
Movements in contract liabilities

23. EHEE -Blkikrst  HtpE
RERESERH(E)

B ()

(i) ERNEREE)
BHREED)

Award points

under
Customer
Prepaid gift loyalty
card programme
EFRH
SEEET
ERERF ZRBED #wEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®T T AR®T T
At 1 January n—RA—8 16,360 7,259 23,619
Decrease in contract liabilities as AERNERRENFAELD
a result of recognising revenue BEMRAMERAELH
during the year that was included BERD
in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (16,360) (1,535) (17,895)
Increase in contract liabilities AR aEEM 12,075 2,443 14,518
At 31 December W+-—A=+—8H 12,075 8,167 20,242

Prepaid gift
card

Award points
under
Customer
loyalty
programme

A8 mR “EEt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT
At 1 January R—A—H 12,921 5,905 18,826
Decrease in contract liabilities as AFANERREITAELD
a result of recognising revenue BEMRAMEREY
during the year that was included aEm>
in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (12,921) (1,475) (14,396)
Increase in contract liabilities AHBRBE M 16,360 2,829 19,189
At 31 December W+—BA=+—8 16,360 7,259 23,619
FEEFTEERBBR AT ZT—NFFR 179



23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS
RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

180

(i)

(ii)

Contract liabilities (Continued)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

Prepaid gift cards

The Group sells the prepaid gift cards to the customers who redeems
the prepaid gift cards for future purchases. The prepaid gift cards are
non-refundable and with no expiry date.

Award points under customer loyalty programme

Under the Group’s customer loyalty programme, customers who
participate in the loyalty programme can earn award points by
spending. Valid awards points as at end of reporting period are with
no expiry date.

Other payables

As at 31 December 2019, included in other payables of
approximately RMB56,370,000 (2018: RMB29,607,000) represented
payables for construction on leasehold improvement.

As at 31 December 2019, included in other payables of
approximately RMB3,312,000 (2018: RMB4,585,000) represented
other PRC tax payables, other than PRC Enterprise Income Tax.

As at 31 December 2019, included in other payables of
approximately RMB2,631,000 (2018: RMB3,244,000) represented
amounts received from (i) suppliers when they send promoters to the
retail stores and (i) staff when joining the retail stores in aggregate.

As at 31 December 2019, included in other payables of
approximately RMB60,000 (2018: RMB60,000) represented
provision for counterclaims of alleged damage ruled by the court
against the Group (Note 37).

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts of the Group’s
contract liabilities, deposits received, other payables and accruals are
considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair values.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

BHNAE Chirse  HittfE
NRERESER(R)

BisE - ()

(0]

(ii)

ABREEE)
HERRENABSBEBERTEZ—
MR IHERIAT -

JEANE-ET RS
AEERBETHEEMEAR X
BNRRRAERRHEE - BNEM
RENAEE B EG MR -

EFRIXFHHETZREDE
EREE s REFPREXFHHET 2
HEPRAXFBHEZERIAEE
HMBESH - BEREHRZEX
BEDBIEEBAR -

H At A FRIE
R-ZE—hFE+_-_A=+—8 "5 A
H i & < 3B 40 A R #656,370,0007T
(ZZE—N\&F : AR¥29,607,0007T)
ERRHAEMER B 2 EMAIE -

R-B-hAFE+-A=+—0 " #HA
H b 8 FIB £ A R 3,312,000 7T
(ZZ—)\F : AR%4,585,0007T) 5
Bk o B 1 3£ AT AS B LA SN 2 HL At FE A R
ERIE

R-B-hAFE+-A=+—0 " A
H b 8 BB £ A K #2,631,000 7T
(ZZ—N\F : AR¥3,244,0007T) 48
(WA ERIREHEEABETEERE
WAt FERE MR R (R E TMBTEE
BN B THORIEME 2 458 o

R-ZE—hE+-_A=+—HB i A
HAh A FRIBLH AR 60,0000 (=F
— N\ : AR¥60,0007T)#5 5L 0ART &
HAEBUHBRBEEREERAZ
B (MIEE37) -

MEFRBAREY Hit AKREZA0E
& SRS HeENREREFERRE
EREREAFEZEIEOH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE SRR MR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NF+-A=+—HItFE

24.

25.

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 24.

The amount was unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

DEFERRED TAXATION 25.

The following are the major deferred tax asset and liabilities
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and previous financial years.

BN —2EEHE
BRAFASELAR  RERRERE

= e

i FE IR
ST AR ERAE R RIB I
FEBRNTEEEHASERAE
RABED -

Revaluation Financial ~ Undistributed
of investment asset at profits of
properties FVOCI subsidiaries
RAFEHA
RENE Htt2mkEz HWEARZ
Bff SREE R KEH #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETR ARETR ARET R
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\&—A—H 20,706 (1,020) 2,800 22,486
Deferred taxation debited to MR EBROETCHE(H9)
the profit or loss (Note 9) 125 1,020 300 1,445
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NF+-A=+-HEK
1 January 2019 “E-NE-B—H 20,831 - 3,100 23,931
Deferred taxation debited to MR EENEEHE(H9)
the profit or loss (Note 9) 200 - - 200
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=+-H 21,031 - 3,100 24,131

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the new Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC issued on 6 December 2007, a 10% withholding
income tax shall be levied on the dividends remitted by
the companies established in the PRC to their foreign
investors starting from 1 January 2008. Dividends declared
or proposed out from the profits generated by the PRC
companies after 1 January 2008 shall be subject to this
withholding income tax.

RER -_ZFZTLFT - ANBRMHD
PR EEMERAERGES - b=
ZZEN\F-A—HAE  BHETBEK
T E R R FESIMEE EIRMN RS
BUN0%MTFEHAEN - R=ZFTZEN
F-A—B%& UHBERREENG
NEIREEHT RS AR RZIR
BB -
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25.

182

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB284,000,000 (2018:
RMB270,000,000), as the Directors consider that timing
of reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2019 the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of approximately RMB50,044,000 (2018: RMB18,140,000)
which were available for offset against future profits and
are subject to expiry period of five years as follows. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, unused tax losses
of approximately RMB Nil (2018: RMB26,657,000) was
reversed upon deregistration and disposal of subsidiaries.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the estimated tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

25.

IEFERLIE ()
R-_TE—HhE+-_A=+—08 &R
MIE A RIS E B B M AR FER
FREREABENEREEBHEFTY
A A R #284,000,0007T (=& — )\
F . AR¥270,000,00070) © AAEE
ERAT AT BOERERERED
BE - MEAEEZEETERAE
BRREER -

R FE TR T & 2 P AR A B A I 245 ) B
BHEERVRFNF RS EEHE
EIETURR - N AE+ A
=—t+t—8 AEBEEAHRSEBK
HEBH ARE50,044,000L (= F
— )\ : AR%18,140,0007T) * A
AR ZREF - WIRRAT AE
FEBERER REE-_ZT—NF
+—A=+—HLFE ABHAFKE
BEEOARBZEL(ZE—N\F . A
R #26,657,0007T ) 7 U8 & i &
EMEAREER - AAREENAR
m AR SRR IEEERE
HFTRIIE R 18 TR o

2019 2018
—EB-hF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥ET T

Expire in RATEEER
- 2019 —ZE—NF = 10
- 2020 ——T-TF S S
- 2021 ——E-—4 - 2,676
- 2022 ——ZE-— 11,319 12,364
- 2023 ——BC-=% 3,090 3,090
- 2024 — T uE 35,635 =
50,044 18,140
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26. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”) 0.01 each

At 1 January and 31 December

26. BA&

2019
—B-nE

Number
of shares
('000)
REGBE
(FIR)
ETE -
BREE.01AT(ET])
Lak

W—A—-BKkt+=-A=1—H 10,000,000

RMB’000

ARBT R

Number
of shares

("000) RMB’ 000

ARBTT

97,099 10,000,000

97,099

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
At 1 January and 31 December

BETRER :
FREE.OTETHLBR
W—A—RAkt=-A=1+-8 1,037,500

10,125

1,037,500

10,125

FERRERERAT

—E-hEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

27. RESERVES
The movements of the Group’s reserves for the year are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The movements of the Company’s reserves for the year are
set out below:

27.

it
AEERFAZRBEDHONERAE

ARARRFRZEEEZSEHFIMT

(Accumulated
losses)/

Share  Contributed Retained Dividend
premium surplus profits proposed
(&t
E8)/
K3 &E HABL RE A REBRS @t
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\§—H—H 252,478 67,848 843 19,816 340,985
Profit and total comprehensive  FREFIRZENELE
income for the year = = 19,748 = 19,748
Dividend approved for 2017 “E-HERIERS - - - (19,816) (19,816)
Proposed dividend for 2018 2 \EZRIRRE S - (19,509) 19,505 -
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\F+-A=+-HBR
1 January 2019 “E-NF—A-H 252,478 67,848 1,086 19,505 340,917
Loss and total comprehensive  FREER2ERFLE
income for the year - - (6,070) - (6,070)
Dividend approved for 2018 “E-\F7ELERE - - - (19,505) (19,505)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE+ZA=1—H 252,478 67,848 (4,984) - 315,342
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27.

RESERVES (Continued)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant PRC laws, subsidiaries established
in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of their net
profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulation, to a statutory reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the entity’s registered capital. The transfer of
this reserve must be made before the distribution of dividend
to the subsidiaries equity owners. The statutory reserve
is non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
entity.

Statutory welfare reserve

According to the relevant PRC laws, companies established
in the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage,
as approved by the directors of the subsidiaries, of its net
profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulation, to a statutory welfare reserve. This reserve can
only be used to provide staff facilities and other collective
benefits to its employees. The statutory welfare reserve
is non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
entity. According to the relevant PRC laws, from 1 January
2006, no subsequent profit distribution to the statutory
welfare reserve was needed.

27.

FERRERERAT

it 65 ()

R RME
REFSHSRAE - BRDVEER
DIRTADRBR - AR ERER
BERAREEARBREELNA
BEBBERPINERNE -

EERE

REBETEEE - NP BRI
BARABERTEERHIEER
BB 1R A N B D 10% 8B 8 205 F #
B ERAERHERHREDEREM
BEARME0% A1 o b REBERELAR
A ff B R A M 15 A A K B AR B AT 1R
oo BRIFEERBR  TRADEEREDT

BoIk

FEERNES

REBEBTREE  EREKINA
AAKEIZ B &5 R B E R
BRENKHBARMESHENET
BOLBREZIERNES - Z&£2
ErRARAEREEBREE TRENRE
BN - FRIFERBR - TADK
ERMNEETEOIK - RIEBRETE
AR BZEEANF-A—BiEE - #
BHRANDREEZIERMNES MR
Rl o
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27.

186

RESERVES (Continued)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
reorganisation completed on 30 April 2007 and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued under the reorganisation and the nominal
value of the aggregate share capital/registered capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries then acquired.

Investment revaluation reserve

Investment revaluation reserve represents fair value reserve
comprising the cumulative net change in the fair value of
equity investments designed at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period.

Other reserve

Other reserve represented the difference between the
consideration paid and the carrying amount of the net assets
attributable to the additional of interest in a subsidiary being
acquired from non-controlling equity holder in prior year.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve represented the revaluation
gain in respect of the leasehold land and buildings which
were reclassified as investment properties for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve represents the exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries into presentation currency of the Company.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result
of the reorganisation completed on 30 April 2007 and
represents the excess of the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange for the consolidated net assets
value of the subsidiaries then acquired.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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ot 8 ()

BOHEE
R-BELFMA=+ARKMESD
BHAEELRSGHEE - SOHRE
RRBEERBITAR AR OEE
BEB RN ERRRA R E
AR R EE AR ZHE -

REEMRHE

RESHRBEBREATERE B8ER
BEMHRFARRTAZ A TERG
FEHFR(REBEFEVHBHRELNE
I E AR A FEF AR MEE R

%) -

Hitbf#
HipfE#EE L —FERIFEREER
BANE— B AR B ME R G
MENREREEFERAEIHEN
ER-

E KRR

MESHEFEERHAEL HRET
(BE-ZT—WF+=-A=+—81
FESENHPEABREME)NEHK

Eo

BB
BERBEELRENBARDMBRRR
ARFRINEBELHERZH -

BB
ARRBABBAR-_FTELFMA
Z+AERNEATES @ BALQE
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BT I B A B AR & BEFER
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28. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(@)

Directors’ emolument

28. EEFHRSREEZAEHME
(@) E=#=

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were ENKENES ST
as follows:
Salaries,
allowance
and other Contributions
benefits to retirement
in kind schemes
2
ERRHM RIRGTE
e BNFE e st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥Tr ARBTr AR%Tx
2019 “Z-NF
Executive directors BiTEE
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun L E - S = =
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong [t 600 103 36 739
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong s 720 203 46 969
1,320 306 82 1,708
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BERELE 152 = = 152
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BEERE 151 - - 151
Mr. Ai Ji XRkHE 151 - - 151
454 - - 454
1,774 306 82 2,162
FEFEERABRAR —E—NFFR 187
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

28. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emolument (Continued)

28.

Eﬁgﬁé%ﬁ%&%&%ﬂkﬁ%ﬁ

(@ ESM=(R)

Salaries,
allowance

and other Contributions
benefits to retirement

loss of office for the year (2018: Nil).

Mr. Gu Wei Ming resigned as an executive director on 14 July 2018.
No directors of the Company waived any emoluments paid by the
Group during the year (2018: Nil).

No emoluments were paid to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
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in kind schemes
R
AR HAM RRGHE
e BNFE e Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR
2018 A
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun prldipes = - - _
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong [ StiksS e 600 126 51 777
Mr. Gu Wei Ming (Note) BARTRR LA (FT5E) 350 67 30 447
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong s 720 244 51 1,015
1,670 437 132 2,239
Independent non-executive BYFRTES
directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BRELE 125 - - 125
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BREELLE 144 - - 144
Mr. Ai Ji IhiE 144 - - 144
413 - - 413
2,083 437 132 2,652
Note: B3

BEEBHEER-_T—\FLA+EA
BERTES -

FARBEARREETREASEMN
ERBE (=T —N\F : &) -

FARRQFEE L 5 E A HE B
E - ERBEMAREE KR AR
RSB E (=T —\F - ) -



28. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included two (2018: two) directors of the Company
for the year, whose emoluments are disclosed in
Note 28(a). Details of the remuneration paid to the
remaining three (2018: three) non-director highest
paid individuals who were also members of senior
management of the Group, which fell within the band
of Nil = HK$1 million (equivalent to approximately Nil —
RMB891,000) are as follows:

28. EEFMREREEAEHS

(&)
(b)

TEREHFMAL
FRAAEBARESFHHA
TEEARAMAE(ZE—N
FMB)EET HENHE
DK E28(@) IR E - X F
BT=Z(ZE—N\F:=8)
BRFMEEEAL(TAR
EESREEAB)NEHEHN
FZHETZE1,000,00058 7T (48
EROARBZTIEARKE
891,0007T) @ #FIBWT :

2019
ZE-NE

RMB’000

Salaries, allowances and benefits

Fo  RMREMAS

PN

in kind 2,298 1,969
Contributions to retirement schemes RRztE| {0 118 118
2,416 2,087

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office for the year (2018: Nil).

Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to six (2018: seven)
members of senior management whose emoluments
fell within the following bands:

(c)

FAXREEYEINHE TE
& =EFMAL - ERBEM
AZRER B DR 7Y 22 B =X
BERAE(CT—N\F: 8\) -

SREEASME
ENfZKERANZ(ZF—-N
FER)RREEEKEZ
BT F AT AR :

Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately Nil - RMB891,000)

T ITE 1,000,000/ 7T
(HEROAREZ LZ
AE#891,0007T)

FERRERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following outstanding capital
commitments:

Contracted, but not provided for,

AEME  BELRED TN

BARENRE

AEBEBFN T AN EARALE

2019 2018

—g-n%  —EF)\&

RMB’000
AR®T

RMB’000
ARET T

in respect of property, plant and AR
equipment 19,332 7,058
30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEALRS

In addition to those transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the following
transactions were carried out with related parties

(@) Transactions with BJH Group

Operating lease payment in respect of & £ IEFH)

land and buildings BEHENTK
Operating lease income in respect of ~ BEREMEMNLLHEE
investment properties WA

B%E’\E%%Eﬁ%#&ﬁﬁ/r&-ﬁﬂ ?EJZ?&

I\Dﬁ?gh ’

Z

Notes

et

AT/ BRRR R A T3

2018
“2-nE  ZEFN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
- (12,938)

2,229 2,328

Notes:

(i) The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms
of the underlying agreements.

(if) As at 31 December 2019, the rental deposit paid by the
Group to BJH Group of approximately RMB3,326,800
(2018: RMB2,076,000) was included in the balances of
deposit paid, prepayments and other receivables of the
Group.

(iii) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach to recognise right-of-use assets
relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17. After initial recognition of
right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as lessee
is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use
assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the
comparative information has not been restated. See note

3(a).
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

Transactions with JH Real Estate

30.

(b)

ZB-NE

Notes
iz
Operating lease payment in respect of B T RIETHEE (i), (i, (i)
land and buildings HERRK
Operating lease income inrespect of ~ BEREMENKLHE i)
investment properties LN
Revenue in respect of sales of goods ~ HEIHESRMMA (i)
Service income in respect of online BERR LT BRI (i)
platform supporting service RREBBA
Operating lease income in BRBRETNEERERA (i

respect of computer software

ARETR

EBALRS (&)
HEEREMENRTS

2019
\ &
RMB’000
ARETTT

RMB’000

- (26,685)
730 730
3,076 =
400 =
47 =

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms
of the underlying agreements.

As at 31 December 2019, the rental deposit paid by the
Group to JH Real Estate of approximately RMB5,352,000
(2018: RMB4,220,000) was included in the balances of
deposit paid, prepayments and other receivables of the
Group.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach to recognise right-of-use assets
relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17. After initial recognition of
right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as lessee
is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use
assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the
comparative information has not been restated. See note
3(a).

B -

(i)

(iif)

FERRERERAT

ZE R BAAR B A0 15

REE ©

RZE-NF+ZA=+—
A AEEREERHME
THHBEERSOARE
5,352,000 0 ( =& — )\ -
AR #4,220,0007 ) 5 A
SEMNEMNEZES  BNRER
H ot FEMCRIB LS A ©

AEBEREARSVEHRE
A E165% - FAMTE
WAHERALNRER S S
HAFI7THRDBRACERE
HWAEBBANEREEE - ¥
—ZE-AE— B HAHRER
EREEER  NEEEARE
AAREHRAERAEEEN
B M3ERATBEER AR
HEREEERCEMETHE
EMMEREE c ERAET
HEERSEES o BHE
3(a) °
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BEBALRE(E)

192

(Continued)
(c) Transactions with Shenzhen Baijiahua (c) EBEFRITEEEEZEZFHE
Yunzhuo Hotel Management Limited EEERATNKS

2019
—E-hE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Service income in respect of online A#A T4 ERBEH

platform supporting service ARESA (ii 400 -
Operating lease income in BEHBMBHNLeHERA
respect of computer software (ii) 40 -

Notes: 5T -

(i) Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, the spouse of (i) EREM A RERW LT (G
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun, have beneficial interests in Shenzhen BEih S E VBB ) ORI B
Baijiahua Yunzhuo Hotel Management Limited. FEEZEREEEERARE

Bk o

(ii) The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms (ii) Z e R IR B 5 R AR

of the underlying agreements. EE -
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30.
(Continued)
(d) Transactions with Shenzhen Jiahua Property
Management Limited

BBALRS (/)
d BERITEEYXRERH

REERAANRS

2019
—E-NE N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Service income in respect of online A4 ¥ & ZERBH

platform supporting service ARESA (ii 400 -
Operating lease income in EBRERTENEERERA

respect of computer software (ii) 40 -
Expenses in respect of BRAMEETENRY

property management (ii (131) -
Short term lease expense in respect 4 B {EE A #)E BT &

of car parking lot A (ii (982) -

Notes: BiFE -

(i) Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, the spouse of
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun, have beneficial interests in Shenzhen
Jiahua Property Management Limited.

(i) The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms
of the underlying agreements.

() Compensation of key management
personnel

(e)

(U] HERE A R R L (G
BE sk 5T AR RO B 4B) 7OR YT 4=
EYEERERATARGEE

s -

(ii) % & BB TR PR AR R 155 s O 1R K
B °

TEEEBAEME

2019
—E-hE

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT

Total remuneration of directors EE(MF28@)EEMEE
(Note 28(a)) and other members EEANBNFHEE
of key management
- Short term employee benefits - RHBREEEF 5,476 5,885
— Contributions to retirement schemes — iR (Rt 2L 351 454
5,827 6,339

CEEEERARAT —T-AEEE 103



31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

31. AQTHBEMRRE

2019
—F-hF 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®BT T ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTBRRIMNEE 67,848 67,848
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B~ Bk IR 256,445 280,263
Prepayments and other receivables  F& {578 K& E A e I 0B 13 173
Cash and bank balances & MIRTTHERR 3,288 4,243
259,746 284,679
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals Hib B R ERE A 2,127 1,485
2,127 1,485
Net current assets REEETE 257,619 283,194
Net assets EEFE 325,467 351,042
EQUITY Ex
Share capital R R 26 10,125 10,125
Reserves E= 27 315,342 340,917
Total equity fEREE 325,467 351,042

Zhuang Lu Kun

i 3o

Director

EF

194 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Zhuang Pei Zhong
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Director
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32.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 and 2019

are as follows:

Company name

RAER

Forever Prosperity Intenational
Company Limited
ARERERAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

and legal form of entity
AL/ KLBER
HEABH

British Virgin Islands,
fimited liability company
EBRNHS AR

LN

Ding Xin Investment Company Limited Hong Kong,

SHREERAR

Heng Run Xin Investment
Company Limited
EEEREARAA

Shenzhen Baijiahua Commercial
Management Limited
AT AEEAFERARAR

Shenzhen Qianhai Baijiahua
Commercial Factoring Limited
AR B EER X RBARAT

Shenzhen Baijiahua Department
Stores Company Limited
AIHAEEREERAA

limited liability company
B4 EREMRAA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company
B4 BREMRLA

The PRC,
limited liability company
hE BRELAT

The PRC,
limited liability company
48 ERELAT

The PRC,
limited liability company

RE - ARAEAF

Guangxi Baijiahua Department Stores The PRC,

Company Limited
BRAEERGARAA

limited liability company

RE - ARAEAA

Particulars of issued
share/paid-up
registered capital
BEIY)
BAREMERFE

US$20
NET
HKS0.1

0137

HK$10,000
10,0007

RMB5,000,000
AR%45,000,0007

RMB50,000,000
AR#50,000,0007

RMB220,400,000
AR 220,400,000

RMB10,000,000
AR%10,000,0007

E&

100%

2019
ZB-NF
Directly

32.

B 2 R R RS

RZBE—N\EFEER_FE—NLF+=A
=t+—8 HWBRARFEBWT :

Percentage of interest

held by the Company

AARGEREAMM
2018

Indirectly
[

100% S

100% S

100% S

100% S

100% S

FERRERERAT

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

-z

Principal activities
and place of operations

TERHRAEHE

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBETRELR

Investment holding
in Hong Kong

Inactive

LR

QOperation and management
of shopping mall
in the PRC

M REERERERL

Commercial factoring
services in the PRC

il SR

Investment holding
and operation and
management of retal
stores in the PRC
IEEGREERR
BERERTER

QOperation and management
of retail stores in the PRC

NRESERERTRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32. RMEBLTIHER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 and 2019 RZE—N\EFER-_ZE—hhF+=HA
are as follows: (Continued) =+—H WEBRAFEBOT : (&)
Percentage of interest
Place of held by the Company
incorporation/ Particulars of issued RAAKERERL
establishment share/paid-up 2019 Principal activities
Company name and legal form of entity  registered capital ZE-NE and place of operations
SREL/RIBER  BRARR/ Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
ARIER HEAER EARAMERGES E# 3 BE A FEERRSEHE
Shenzhen BJH Network Technology - The PRG, RMB10,000,000 - 100% S 100%  Operation and management
Limited limited liability company ~(2018: RMB5,000,000) of onling sale in the PRC
AMEEEREREBRAT hE - BREFAT AR10,000,0007 RS RERALHE
(ZE-N\E:
AB#5,000,0007C)
Shenzhen Baijiahua Convenient The PRC, RMB5,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Inactive
Stores Chain limited liabilty company A& %5,000,0007C Ffis gy
Management Limited hE - BREFAT
MM A EEEENEERERAR
Shenzhen Baijiahua Supply Chain -~ The PRG, RMB5,000,000 - 100% S 100%  Supply chain financing
Management Limited limited liabilty company ~ A& %5,000,0007C services in the PRC
MIMEELARRERERLR T8 AREALA RPERTHEESRRS
The financial statements of the above subsidiaries were T WBARMNTBHREDRTEE
audited by BDO Limited, for statutory purpose and/or for the PR E R, SKEEFAKREREBL
purpose of the group consolidation. EEREHMEBMBRAGERZ -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at RER - BEMB AR FITEREER
the end of the year. B o
Notes: B3
0] During the year ended 31 December 2018, a subsidiary, Shenzhen (i) REBE-Z—-/\F+=ZA=+—8H1t
Qianhai Baijiahua Beverage Management Limited (F3II7 318 & (% FE-MEBARRYTWAEEEER
ZHE AR A F]) has been disposed as mentioned in Note 33. RKEBBR AR B WHE (WM E33AT
) e
(ii) On 1 February 2019, a subsidiary, Heng Run Xin Investment (ii) R-ZE—hE-F—8  WBARE
Company Limited ({88 #&3% & B[R 2 7)) has been deregistered. HEREARABC BEEEM -
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33.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY IN PRIOR 33.

YEAR

As referred to in note 8(b), on 30 June 2018, the Group
disposed of its subsidiary, Baijiahua Beverage. The net
liabilities Baijiahua Beverage at the date of disposal on 30

June 2018 were as follows:

EFEHE-RNBEAF

Kt EE8(b) it - M- E—\FXA
=tH  AEELEEMNBRARAE
FER -  AEEERNHERH T

—NFRA=Z+THENEEFENT :

30 June 201

MB’000
ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 19,101
Intangible assets mEEE 2,492
Inventories and consumables FERSER 581
Deposits paid — non-current Bff&ke —FERD 705
Deposits paid, prepayments and BEffES -« BRERA R

other receivables — current FIE - R E) 997
Cash and bank balances Be RBTEH 98
Trade payables e B SRR (1,349)
Contract liabilities AHBE (610)
Deposits received, other payables and accruals D Uik - HithENZIENETER (24,906)
Net liabilities disposed of EHREAEFE (2,891)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary, included in HE—RfB AR Z WS st ABKIE

profit from discontinued operation for the year — #Z & 7% 7 F P a F (I 5E8(b))

(Note 8(b)) 12,341
Total consideration wRE 9,450
Satisfied by: BBUATHEAXRM:

Cash BHe 9,450

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENRESRAFEH

Cash consideration RERE 9,450

Cash and bank balances disposed of EHERE RIRITHESRS (98)
9,352
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34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 34. RS IBE4LEEBoYUE

198

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lease

liabilities

(Note 13)

HEEE

(H3%13)

RMB’ 000

AR¥T T

At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—A—H 515,438
Changes in cash flow: Rensgg .

Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities ~ {EiEHE E{f2$%ﬁ 152y (61,517)

Repayment of interest portion of lease liabilites ~ EEHE A EZ M LD (51,750)

Total changes from financing cash flows: FERe RSP EEEE (113,267)

Other changes: HmEs)

Interest on lease liabilities HEGEFE 51,750

Additions to lease liabilities HESBERE 227,975

Disposals of lease liabilities HEHEBE (61)

Total other changes: H e ast - 279,664

At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—-HE+=-A=+—8 681,835
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and
in its investment activities. The financial risks include market
risk (including currency risk and interest risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the Board. The
overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets. Long term
financial investments are managed to generate lasting
returns with acceptable risk levels.

It is not the Group’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to
are described below.

35.

MEEREERAFETE

AEEREAFEBEEBREIKE
EBERASRITANESMEER -
ERyBReEET SRR (BEE
¥RREMNERR)  EERRER
PEEAR -

MHRREEHANSEARIHE - AL
HEZETYAF - EEMBRERZ
EEERERENEBRERL TR
SRR - BERAEEEHEPHR
ERE - REERRENTTEZ AR
REELFEDRER -

AEEZ BRI FREARERE K
MERTAES - AKEMEYRE
RO EBEBRKAMT
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35.
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
Categories of financial assets and liabilities

(i)

_

The carrying amounts presented in the statements of
financial position relate to the following categories of
financial assets and financial liabilities:

BHEEABEERAFETE
&)
i)

TRIEERBEER

R BRARKESNEBEHE
EkemaBRMNZREER
T

2019 2018
—ZF- j-l.: $ = .«"H\.EE
RMB’000
ARBETT

RMB’000
ARBTR

Financial assets: SREE .
Financial assets measured BB ENAGTTEZEREE
at amortised costs
- Cash and bank balances e RRTES 117,737 270,896
- Trade and loan receivables —ERESERRER 70,809 60,859
- Deposits paid and other receivables — B 1% 4 & H fth fE U 708 34,830 44,464
223,376 376,219
Financial liabilities: cRAE:
Financial liabilities measured at REHEKATEZ2RAE
amortised costs
- Trade payables —ENESER 98,057 172,003
- Deposits received, other payables  — B Uiz 4 ~ H b e~ 7008 2 g
and accruals BHEAR 143,651 110,451
- Lease liabilities -HEAE 681,835 =
— Amount due to a director —EN—REENE 59 59
923,602 282,513
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has operation in the PRC so that the
majority of the Group’s revenues, expenses and cash
flows are denominated in RMB. Assets and liabilities
of the Group are mostly denominated in RMB and
HK$. Any significant exchange rate fluctuations of
foreign currencies against RMB may have financial
impact to the Group.

The Group’s exposures at the reporting date
to currency risk arising from foreign currency
denominated monetary assets in currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate are set out below:

THEE

Financial assets:
Cash and bank balances — HK$

35. BIXEREER AFETE
(%)
(i)

ReMRITHEB—ET

SN LB
EREREERTAZAFE
FARKRERERNERES)
R Ey 2 E g o

AEBRPREER  BA
SEABAIWA - A KBRS
MELAARKETE - XEE
RBPBEERABBEUIARE R
BITEHE © SMELAREHE
EMBEAERNKBGA] LY
REEBRUBEE -

HRASNEEHERM B EE N
HEHERNNEEETRN
B¥HE  BAKERHER
HAZ T g% RERE

2019
ZE-NE

RMB’000
PN

ARBETT

4,470 5,548
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

202

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had strengthened
by 5% against HK$, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year and, retained
profits would have been approximately RMB214,000
lower (2018: RMB264,000 lower), as a result of
foreign exchange gains on translation of foreign
currency denominated financial assets and liabilities.

The same % decrease in the foreign currency
exchange rate on RMB against HK$ would have the
same magnitude on the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year and retained profits as shown above but
of opposite effect, on the basis all variances held
constant.

These are the same method and assumption used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the
financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2019.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M IRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_T-NF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. KEBREERAFEE
P

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)
(iii)  Credit risk iiiy FEER
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty T*Eﬂ Tﬁ/ﬁﬁﬂlﬂmx%“ﬁ
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its FHEEREBESR T AGEIRE
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument TEET  2AKELHRGB
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s EF R AR - A% B AR
maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying j(PFHJ_L Eﬁ%&fiﬁﬁ
amounts of cash and bank balance, trade and loan # o ERE SRR RER
receivables, deposits paid and other receivables. DR & &Ef@ﬁguﬁz%’ﬂ,ﬁz;ﬁ;ﬁ
o
For the operation and management of retail stores HEEREETEEREMAE
and other related businesses, the Group has no BEBmE  AEENEER
significant concentrations of credit risk. Most of B ENIBEREPBMR -
the sales transactions were settled in cash basis, REDHERHUERE - 5
by credit card payment or through online payment FH-FH%‘JZ&@&%J:%H” a
platforms. Credit terms are only offered to corporate B AEBERNERFEY
customers with whom the Group has an established FERLERFIRHEEH - &
and ongoing relationship. Regarding trade receivables THeWAEENERKE SR
arising from rental income, the Group maintains AR EEZREREEWNGE
a defined credit policy including stringent credit BEHBER  BEBRENEERM
evaluation on and payment of a rental deposit from EaHEPWBRAERSE - 3
tenants. Receivables are regularly reviewed and @ FHiE R 2 2 1)) BS R FE LR Gk
closely monitored to minimise any associated credit H o AR ADEAEREEER
risk. % o
The Group’s trade receivables, deposits paid and e I EhES B AN & [E /Y FE Ui
other receivables are actively monitored to avoid BE5EREN  Oftike REMmE
significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group WHRIE - e zERkREES
is not exposed to any significant credit risk from any oo REEERAFHEUE
single counterparty or any group of counterparties BHEME - HEFHEM
having similar characteristics. The Group’s bank B FRBIIETAERE
deposits were deposited with major financial BER - REBORITEESF
institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC, which EREBNMTPENES S RIE
management believes are of high-credit-quality B EIEERERERERE
without significant credit risk. EmEEE  TEHRENE
gﬂ & o
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

All of the Group’s trade receivables, deposits paid
and other receivables have no collateral. Details of the
Group’s ECLs assessments are as follows:

204

(iii)

(a)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach in
providing for ECLs as prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which requires the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. The
Group always measures the loss allowance
for trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables
are estimated by reference to past default
experience of the debtor and current market
condition in relation to each debtor’s
exposure. The ECLs also incorporates
forward-looking information with reference
to general macroeconomic conditions that
may affect the ability of the debtors to settle
receivables. To measure the ECLs, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
share credit risk characteristics.

No provision for impairment loss for these
trade receivables (including rental income
receivables) were made at 31 December
2019 and 2018 as the financial assets were
considered to be of low credit risk and the
ECLs of these financial assets was immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M IRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NE+-A=1+—BHILEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. KEBREERAFEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)

(b)

(c)

Deposits paid and other receivables

The Group determines ECLs for deposits paid
and other receivables based on 12-month
ECLs which take into account the historical
default experiences and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, for example,
the Group considers the consistently low
historical default rates of counterparties. It
is concluded that credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding deposits paid and other
receivables are insignificant. Except the
deposit paid amounted to RMB1,828,000
which related to the litigation described in note
37 has been experienced significant increase
in credit risk where lifetime ECL has been
recognised, the Group has assessed that the
remaining deposits paid and other receivables
do not have a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and risk of default
is insignificant, therefore, the ECLs for those
remaining deposits paid and other receivables
were immaterial under the 12-month ECLs
method. No loss allowance for the remaining
deposits paid and other receivables were
recognised for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2019.

Loan receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from loan receivables from financing
services business. As at 31 December 2019,
the five largest loan receivables, in aggregate,
contributed approximately RMB46,477,000 or
66% (2018: RMB47,119,000 or 77%) to the
Group’s total trade and loan receivables.

(c)

BHEE R H AW
15

AEEER+-@ATE
HEEEBEBERE RS
R H M ERFEE A
HiEEEE  BHitk
BEEODERAEY
B (@A) - Bl
SEeEEENEBE
—EHERENZZHF -
A - EwmBEAEED
KBRS R EMmER
FIEEEEERR T
FEK - BREMZEA
FR#1,828,0007T (£ Kt
SESTRTI AR AB BE)
MEBEREREEEE L
DRt R 2 A G
BEBN  NEBFY
BB RERAR » &4
Bt EE R H AU
HWEEERRAEBEE
#in - BERLHBRBRY T
BX - MZEESKEH
& R H A EWFIER
B+—EABEHEES
BEMEHEREBY
TER -BHE-_ZT—N
FR-_FT—h&F+=A
=t+—HIFEITERE
REBKEMIESREM
FEU B R ESIE B -

FEWE X

REBREHNEERR
FERGSRRBERS
MEWERESE - RZ
E-NEFF+ZA=1+—
B 2 AmhERE
REREREHBREK
BZEFRRERERLOA
R ¥ 46,477,000 JC 8%
66%( —F—\F A
R ¥ 47,119,000 7T =k
77%) °

EEREERERAF —T-NAFFR 205



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
re IS IRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NE+-A=+—BHILEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Loan receivables (Continued)

In respect of loan receivables, the Group’s
policy is that all customers who wish to
obtain loans from the Group are subject
to management review. The Group holds
collaterals directly or indirectly to cover its risks
associated with loan receivables.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 to measure
ECLs which uses a 12-month ECLs for
loan receivables. To measure the ECLs,
loan receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics. The
internal credit risk ratings are based on
qualitative (such as debtors’ operating
conditions, financial positions, external rating
of customers, etc.) and quantitative factors
(mainly includes past due information of the
loan receivables).

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
by referencing the external data adjusted by
macroeconomic factors and forward-looking
information, etc.

Based on the Group’s ECLs assessment, the
ECLs for loan receivables were immaterial
under 12-month ECLs method and therefore
no impairment loss allowance is recognised for
loan receivables.

The credit policies have been followed by the
Group throughout the year and are considered
to be effective.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly
arises on cash and bank balances and loan
receivables. The Group has not used any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
The Group has not formulated a policy to manage the
interest rate risk.

Management monitors the related interest exposure
closely to ensure the interest rate risks are maintained
at an acceptable level. The level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken is
monitored closely.

Management considers the Group’s exposure to fair
value interest rate risk is not significant due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

A reasonable change in interest rate in the next
twelve months is assessed to result in immaterial
change in the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits. Changes in interest rates have no impact on
the Group’s other components of equity. The Group
adopts centralised treasury policies in cash and
financial management and focuses on reducing the
Group’s overall interest expense.

35. BIXEREER AFETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
re IS IRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NE+-A=+—BHILEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations and also in respect of its cash
flow management.

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash
and bank balances and have available funding to
meet its working capital requirements. The Group’s
liquidity is dependent upon the cash received from its
customers.

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss of
RMB52,342,000 and at the end of reporting period,
its current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB72,878,000. The liquidity of the Group is
primarily dependent on the basis that (i) a related
company of the Group, JH Real Estate, has confirmed
irrevocably and unconditionally to provide continuing
financial support to the Group so as to enable
the Group to meet its obligations and liabilities as
and when they fall due and to continue its day-to-
day business operations as a viable going concern
notwithstanding any present or future financial
difficulties for coming 12 months at least up to 31
December 2020; (ii) the management of the Group
has prepared a cash flow projection covering a
period of 12 months from 31 December 2019. The
cash flow projection has taken into account the
anticipated cash flows to be generated from the
Group’s business during the period under projection.
The Directors, after making due enquires and
considering the basis of management’s projection
described above, believe that there will be sufficient
financial resources to continue its operations and to
meet its financial obligation as when they fall due in
the next 12 months from 31 December 2019; (iii) the
management of the Group has been endeavouring to
improve the Group’s operating results and cash flows
through various cost control measures; and (iv) the
management of the Group will endeavour to seek for
additional sources of financing.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in managing liquidity risks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NF+-A=+—HItFE

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative as at 31 December
2018 and 2019. When the creditor has a choice of
when the liability is settled, the liability is included
on the basis of the earliest date on when the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement of the
liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Group is committed
to pay.

contractual
undiscounted
cash flows
AORER
Renety
RMB'000
ARETT

Carrying
amount

i
RMB'000
NRRTT

35. MREABREERAFEHNE

i

N
(n
n

(v

~

Total Repayable
within one
year or on

demand

-FREAR

IXfEE
RMB'000
ARBTT

REBES R (E)
LWTaMAREER_Z—N
FR_F-hhF+-_A=+—
BHIESTEBEE M HRE 05
B o (&R A RRIEE
BEMNKRE - AaGEEAE
BRI ESKERNET AERK
k- WBE T HESR A&
BNROREAEBAEEN
H T HAfE o

Over 1 year
but less than
2 years

Over 2 year
but less than
5 years
BELL
BORRE  BOREE EENE
RMB'00 RMB'000 RMB'000
T ARBTR  ARETR

More than
5 years

—ElE

At 31 December 2019 RZF-nE+-A=+-H
Trade payables ERE55T 98,057 98,057 98,057 e e e
Depostts received, other Bk - ABENFER

payables and accruals fErER 143,651 143,651 143,651 = e e
Lease liabiltes HEEE 681,835 931,693 124,578 116,905 319,305 370,905
Amount dus to a director 423305 59 59 59 - - -
Total 5 923,602 1,173,460 366,345 116,905 319,305 370,905
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NE+-A=1-A
Trade payables ERESER 172,003 172,008 172,003 = g =
Depostts received, other BhES - LtEAER

payables and accruals BB 110,451 110,451 110,451 = 5 5
Amount due to a director Ef-4E%53 5 5 5 - - -
Totd 4 MEI W13 2851 - - -

The Group considers expected cash flows from
financial assets in assessing and managing liquidity
risk, in particular, its cash resources and other liquid
assets that readily generate cash. The Group’s
existing cash resources and other liquid assets
significantly exceed the cash outflow requirements.

AEERFERERRBE S ERE
EEEERMEECTRAREAE - L
HRHERGERREMAAIEEER
ENRBEE - AEEREREER
REMRSEENBBELRSRES
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EEREERERAF —T-NAFFR

209



36.

210

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods
and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Management regards total equity as capital, for
capital management purpose. The amount of capital
as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
RMB533,881,000 (2018: RMB605,728,000), in which
management considers as optimal having considered the
projected capital expenditures and the projected strategic
investment opportunities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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37.

LITIGATIONS

In July 2011, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
Yulin Hongyuan Real Estate Development Limited (“Yulin
Hongyuan”) pursuant to which the Group would lease from
Yulin Hongyuan a property located at No. 8 Baishigiao Road
of Yulin, Guangxi, the PRC for setting up a store (the “Yulin
Store”). The Group also entered into property management
agreements with a related company of Yulin Hongyuan,
Handan Shengyuan Property Service Limited (“Shengyuan”)
for the Yulin Store in July 2011.

In October 2012, the Group has commenced legal
proceedings against Yulin Hongyuan and Shengyuan as
Yulin Hongyuan has breached the lease agreement for failing
to hand over the property to the Group before the deadline
as stipulated in the lease agreement. The Group demanded
repayments of the deposits and prepaid rentals and
management fees of an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB4,173,000 from Yulin Hongyuan and Shengyuan.
The Group further claimed a sum of approximately
RMB1,669,000, being penalty for breaching the agreements
and the costs of the proceedings.

In December 2012, Yulin Hongyuan and Shengyuan have
filed counterclaims against the Group for the alleged damage
of an aggregate amount of approximately RMB8,466,000
arising from the alleged improper cancellation of the
agreements by the Group and the costs of the proceedings.

For the litigation with Yulin Hongyuan:

In July 2013, the court has announced its judgement that
the Group was required to bear the alleged damage to Yulin
Hongyuan with a total of approximately RMB3,510,000; Yulin
Hongyuan was required to return the prepaid rentals and
deposit to the Group of approximately RMB1,407,000 and
RMB938,000 respectively; the Group was required to bear
partial court processing fee of approximately RMB25,000. In
August 2013, the Group and Yulin Hongyuan have lodged
appeal against the decision by the court separately.
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LITIGATIONS (Continued)

Following by several appeals lodged by the Group and Yulin
Hongyuan respectively and respective court judgments
announced by court during 2013 to 2017, in December
2017, the court has announced its judgements that the
Group was required to bear the counterclaims of alleged
damage to Yulin Hongyuan of approximately RMB3,159,000;
Yulin Hongyuan was required to return the prepaid rentals
and deposit to the Group of approximately RMB1,407,000
and RMB938,000 respectively; the Group was required
to bear partial court processing fee of approximately
RMB65,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
has received the repayments of prepaid rentals and rental
deposit of approximately RMB2,345,000 in aggregate, and
settled the provision of counterclaims of alleged damage
of approximately RMB3,159,000 to Yulin Hongyuan. The
directors of the Company are of the view that, as pursuant
to legal opinion from the Group’s legal advisor, the litigation
against Yulin Hongyuan had been concluded and settled.

For the litigation with Shengyuan:

In October 2013, the court has announced its judgement
that the Group was required to bear the alleged damage
to Shengyuan with a total of approximately RMB678,000;
Shengyuan was required to return the prepaid management
fee and deposit to the Group of approximately
RMB1,097,000 and RMB731,000 respectively; the Group
was required to bear the partial court processing fee of
approximately RMB12,000. In December 2013, the Group
has lodged appeal against the decision by the court.

In July 2014, the court has announced its judgement that
the Group was required to bear the alleged damage to
Shengyuan with a total of approximately RMB60,000;
Shengyuan was required to return the prepaid management
fee and deposit to the Group of approximately
RMB1,097,000 and RMB731,000 respectively; the Group
was required to bear the partial court processing fee of
approximately RMB16,000.
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LITIGATIONS (Continued)

In October 2015, the court has cancelled its previous
judgements regarding the legal proceedings with Shengyuan
in October 2013 and July 2014 as stated above respectively
and the legal proceedings will be processed again by the
court.

In August 2016, the court has announced that the
judgements made in July 2014 have been sustained.
Shengyuan lodged appeal to the intermediate court
immediately but has been turned down.

In August 2017, Shengyuan has lodged appeal to high
court against the decision by the intermediate court but
has been turned down. The Group has lodged application
for compulsory execution of the decision by the court
immediately and the compulsory execution has been
approved by the count in January 2018.

The directors of the Company are of the view that, as
pursuant to legal opinion from the Group’s legal advisor,
prepaid management fee and deposit with amounts of
approximately RMB1,828,000 should be refunded to the
Group from Shengyuan. Provision of counterclaims of
alleged damage granted by the court of approximately
RMB60,000 to Shengyuan was made in prior years and
included in other payables as at 31 December 2018. The
directors of the Company considered that the prepaid
management fee and deposit to be credit-impaired,
impairment loss on prepaid management fee and deposits
with amounts totalling RMB1,828,000 was made, which
has been recorded in other operating expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company are
of the view that there is no contingent liabilities regarding the
litigations with Shengyuan.

Furthermore, the directors of the Company are of the view
that adequate provision for legal fees in relation to the
proceedings has been made as at 31 December 2018.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There has been an outbreak of pneumonia caused by
a new coronavirus which was subsequently named as
COVID-19 by the World Health Organization (“WHQO”) since
the beginning of the year 2020. On 30 January 2020,
WHO declared the outbreak of COVID-19 to constitute a
public health emergency of international concern. WHO has
characterised COVID-19 as a pandemic on 11 March 2020.
The government in the PRC has implemented various severe
measures in controlling the spread of COVID-19 such as
imposing travel restrictions and quarantine arrangements
to travellers, home confinement of residents and border
controls that may adversely affect the retail business in the
PRC and economic activities of the Group to some extent.
The Group’s operation, financial performance, cash flows
and financial position for the year 2020 are expected to
deteriorate as compared to those of the year 2019 due to the
impact from the COVID-19 pandemic and the related control
measures.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Group applies fair value model to measure its investment
property. In 2020, fair value of the Group’s investment
property may be subject to fluctuations due to the COVID-19
pandemic.

Up to the date of approval of this set of consolidated
financial statements, the Group is currently unable to
reasonably estimate the financial impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the Group as the duration and intensity of this
global health emergency and the related disruptions are
uncertain. The management of the Group will closely monitor
the development of the COVID-19 pandemic and react
proactively to its impact on the Group’s operation, financial
performance, cash flows and financial position for the year
2020.

The implementations of the control measures in response to
the COVID-19 pandemic are non-adjusting events after the
financial year end of 31 December 2019 and do not result in
any adjustments to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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RESULTS ¥E

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2015 16 2017
“T-REF = £ ZE—tF

RMB’000 7RMB 0[0]0) RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT AR®TR ARETR
(re-presented)

(Z51)
Continuing operations RELEEE
Revenue WA 839,674 728,903 690,124 710,336 645,329
Cost of inventories sold BEFERK (579,767) (468,950) (418,357) (410,424) (354,233)
259,907 259,953 271,767 299,912 291,096
Other operating income HigglA 66,169 69,992 63,135 71,509 65,703
Increase in fair value of REME
investment properties NEEE 3,100 10,600 20,100 500 800
Selling and distribution costs ~ $4% ]/ $5AU AR (214,561) (216,943) (218,184) (284,905) (290,102)
Administrative expenses THRX (43,887) (54,047) (63,507) (49,997) (60,063)
Other operating expenses H s (5,237) (4,911) (7,120) (3,465) (5,455)
Finance cost B R A (13) - - - (51,750)
Share of loss of an associate By — B4 A AR (1,475) (116) - - -
Profit before income tax PR RSB AT & 7 64,003 64,528 76,191 33,554 (49,771)
Income tax expense GRS (18,414) (23,393) (26,665) (9,085) (2,571)
Profit from continuing operations B L ¥
for the year ERHEFI 45,589 41,135 49,526 24,469 (52,342)
Discontinued operation BRI HTR £
Profit/(loss) from discontinued ~ BR HEE &K
operation for the year FNEF/ (E1) = = (16,327) 734 =
Profit for the year FREH 45,589 41,135 33,199 25,203 (52,342)
Profit/(loss) attrioutable to: T ATEEER/
(B#) :
- Owners of the Company ~ARAHEEA 45,600 41,306 33,199 25,203 (52,342)
- Non-controlling interest — R RER (1) (171) - - -
45,589 41,135 33,199 25,208 (52,342)
Dividends =) 13,176 25,004 19,816 19,505 -
Earnings per share BREAM
- Basic -EX RMBAR® RMBAR RMBAR® RMBAR®  RMBARM
440 cents??  3.98cents?  3.20 centsn  2.43 cents? (5.05) centsp
- Diluted -#%E RMBAR® RMBAR RMBA R RMBAK®  RMBARY

440 cents??  3.98 cents  3.20 cents7  2.43 cents? (5.05) cents
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RMB’000 RMB'000

EEREE

As at 31 December

Mt=A=t+-H
2017 2019
—2—tF —F-N —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000

ARETT ARETR

ARBTT ARETT ARETR

Total assets BEE 835,790 875,313 942,416 947,752 1,505,579

Total liabilities BeE (271,918) (283,732) (342,640) (342,024) (971,698)

Net assets BEFE 563,872 591,581 599,776 605,728 533,881
Note: BiaE -

216

The results for year ended 31 December 2019, and the assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 2019 have been extracted from the audited consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and audited consolidated statement of
financial position as set out on page 68 to 69 and pages 70 to 71 respectively,
of the financial statements.
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